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Dear Chairman Hargett:

Enclosed please find an original and seven (7) sets of copies of Tennessee American
Water Company’s First Supplemental Response to the TRA’s Data Request No. 1. In addition,
TAWC includes two compact disks. The first compact disk contains TAWC’s Supplemental
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Please return three (3) copies of this Supplemental Response to me by way of our courier,
which I would appreciate your stamping as “filed.”

Should you have any questions concerning any of the enclosed, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

With kindest regards, I remain

\/ i '// .
- Adam’?utrell
Enclosures

www.bassberry.com


AA01009
Text Box
electronically filed 8/12/08


Chairman Tre Hargett
August 12, 2008
Page 2

cc: Hon. Ron Jones (w/o enclosure)
Hon. Sara Kyle (w/o enclosure)
Hon. Eddie Roberson, PhD (w/o enclosure)
Ms. Darlene Standley, Chief of Utilities Division (w/o enclosure)
Richard Collier, Esq. (w/o enclosure)
Mr. Jerry Kettles, Chief of Economic Analysis & Policy Division (w/o enclosure)
Ms. Pat Murphy {(w/o enclosure}
Timothy C. Phillips, Esq. (w/enclosure)
David C. Higney, Esq. (w/enclosure)
Henry M. Walker, Esq. (w/enclosure)
Michael A, McMahan, Esq. (w/enclosure)
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TENNESSEE AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
Docket No. 08-00039
Tennessee Regulatory Authority Staff Data Request No. 1

Responsible Withess:  Michael A. Miller

GENERAL
Question:

5. Provide (six) copies of the Annual Stockholder Reports, the 10K reports, and
10Q reports for TAWC, its Parent, Multi-State Utility, or Affiliated Utility Service
Company, for the last three (3) years.

- Response:

Attached is the 2007 Audited Financial Statements for AWW which includes
information for 2005-2007. Also attached are the 2005-2007 Audited Financial
Statements for TAWC. Neither AWW or TAWC are currently publicly traded and
have not filed 10K or 10Q reports for 20605-2007.

August 12, 2008 Supplemental Response: _
On April 28, 2008, AWW completed an initial public offering. Attached are copies
of AWW’s Form 10-Q dated May 14, 2008 and its Form 10-Q dated August 12,
2008. }



Form 10-Q
American Water Works Company, Inc. - AWK

May, 14 2008
Quarterly report [Sections 13 or 15(d)]

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



10-Q 1 d10g.htm FORM 10-Q

Table of ent:

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008

OR
O  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file: pumber 001.34028

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

{Exact nawe of registrant as specified in is charter)

Delaware 51-0063696
(State or other jurisdiction of {(1.R.5. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
1025 Laurel Oak Road, Voorhees, NJ 08043
(Address of principal executive offices) {Zip Cede}
(856} 346-8200
(Registrant’s v Inclading area code}

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed alf reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Sccurities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. [] Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a farge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smakier reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” Hccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

O Large accelerated filer T Acceierated filer Non-accelerated filer [0 Smaller reporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Ruie 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). {3 Yes No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.
2

Class On ding at May 4, 2008

Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share 160,000,000 shares

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment
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PART L FINANCIAE INFORMATION
FTEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unagdited)
March 31, Dectandber 31,
2008 2007

Property, plant and equipment

9317968

Currcnt assets
13481
3,258

3 zss 757
3103407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



TFable of Canfents

American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited}
March 31, December 31,
2068 2007

2315 04,542,046

168,886

: ruedincluding Tederal 56,002
Interest accrued 50,867
SETUI81765

774,489

e

{ contingenci SRS S
TOTAL CAPITALI?ATION AND LIABILITIES $ 12,268,004 § 12,934,072

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consoiidated financial statements.

4
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companics
Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Three Morths Ended
March 31,

Total operatmg expeﬁses net N o _ 1,177,173
0. Iat g‘"(f{)ss) 11](:01]1@ ol R TR BN RS (670 358)
Other income {éeducnons}

1irEs per COMmMmon s
(L()SS) mwme from contmu

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



Eable of Contents

American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
{In thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended
March 31,
w2087

CASHTLOWS FROM OPERATING: ‘ACTIVITIES
Net (Ecss) income

SU32484) 5 2685

6l e

 Other current liabilities _ _ 7 08 _
-2 Netieash provided by operating activities, i SR RTN R A DGUB5 39 T SA b
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

{166,115)

_ 15) ___(266 553)
1 y rm debt apreements : 60,740 -1 2(555,578)
Advances and contributions for construction, net of refunds 09

: Ef'isaa::cmg detivities: o R R i g8l
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equwaients _ . (4,279} 244 009

$ 40, 378

$ 58,848

N 434;
$.100,000:

The accompanying netes are an integral part of these consolidated financial staterents.
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American Water Works Company, Inc, and Subsidiary Companies

Conselidated Statements of Changes in Common Stockholder’s Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(Unaundited)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Common Stock, 591 Par Value: Accamulated
500,000 Shares Authorized and Other Common
160,000 Shores Issned and Outstanding Paid-in Accumiulated  Comprehensive  Stockholder’s  Comprehensive

Shares B Par Vahie Capital Income (Loss) Equity income (Loss)
L000:0g o X 103,947 SN18383) 8 4520
(732484 § (732484

" 6 - § e
(l45) )

{145 LS
§ (732623

160,000 1600 35,637,047 $(1811,602) 522) - §3509,423 0
Commmon Stock, $.81 Par Value: Accumulated
50,4800 Shares Authorized and Orther Common
160,000 Skares Issued and Quistanding Paid.n A lated (8! 4 ive  Stockholder’s Comprehensive

Shiares

Defigit IIIC_Q;'EG {Loss) Lguity Income (Loss).
736292y 8- #$ 3.817.3%7

oreign cuiTency transialio i AT vy v ALOEE (RN .03
Total comprehensive income 3 2,490
' ; 3 = Y

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consotidated financial statements,

1

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



Table of en

American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet of American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies (the “Company”) at
March 31, 2008, the consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, the consolidated statements of
cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated statements of changes in common stockhelder’s equity
and comprehensive income (loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, are unaudited, but reflece all adjustments, which are, in
the opinion of management, necessary to present fairly the consolidated financial position, the consolidated changes in common stockholder’s
equity, the consolidated results of operations, and the consolidated cash flows for the periods presented. All adjustments are of a normal,
recurring nature, except as otherwise disclosed. Because they cover interim periods, the unaudited consolidated financial statements and related
notes to the consolidated financial statements do not include all disclosures and notes normaily provided in annual financial statements and,
therefore, should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related notes included in the Company's
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007, The results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily
indicative of the results that may be expected for the year, due primarily to the seasonality of the Company's operations.

Nete 2: New Accounting Proncuncements

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASE™) Issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — inchuding an amendment of FASE Statement No, 115" (“SFAS 159, This standaré
permils entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair vahue, The objective is to improve financial
reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabikities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 is effective for years beginning Jamuary 1, 2008, The
Company has not elected to exercise the fair value irrevocable option. Therefore, the adoption of SFAS 159 did not have an impact on the
Company's results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157,
SFAS 157 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles guidance requiring use of
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements, In February 2008, the
FASB issued FASB Staff Position FAS 157-2 which allows a one-year defetral of aduption of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liabilities (such as intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and goodwill) that are required to be measured a fair vafue ona periodic
basis (such as at acquisition or impairment). The Company elected to use this deferral option and accordingly, only partially adopted SFAS 157
on January i, 2008, SFAS 157 will be adopted for the Company’s nonfinancial assets and liabilities valued on a aon-recurring basis on Januasy 1,
2009.

On Jarmary 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities, and nonfinancial assets and
Habilities with recurring measurements, The Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the period were
cash and cash equivalents, restricted funds and short-term debt. These assets and liabilities were measured at fair value on the bafance sheet
date using quoted prices in active markets (Jevel | inputs, as defined by SFAS 157). The adoption of SEAS 157 for the Company’s financial
assets and liabilities did not have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows. The Company will be
required to measure the assets of its defined benefit pension and other post retirement welfare plans pursuant to SFAS 157 at the next
measuremnent date, which will be December 31, 2008,

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 3: Goodwitl

Inn April of 2008, as a result of the pricing of the Company’s initial public offering (“IPO™) (See Note 13), management determined that an interim
triggering event occurred and that it was appiopriate to update its valuation analysis before the next scheduled annual test,

Based on this assessment, the Company performed an interim impairment test as of March 31, 2008. The Company concluded that the
carrying value of its goodwill was impaired as a result of the current market price and trading fevels of its common stock. The Company believes
the offering price was indicative of the value of the Company at March 31, 2008 and accordingly, based on those factors, the Company recorded
an impairment charge to goodwill related to its Regulated Businesses of $750,000. The Company has reflected the tax effect of the impairment as
& diserete item for purposes of calculating its tax provision as the charge is considered an infrequently eccurring or unusual item. The
impairtent charge was primarily due to the market price of the Company’s common stock (both the TPO price and the market price during
subsequent trading) being less than what was anticipated during the Company’s 2007 atnual test. Also contributing to the impairment was a
decline in the fair value of the Company’s debt (due to increased market interest rates),

In developing the estimated fair value of the Company’s reporting units, significant judgment was required. The Company determined the
estimated fair value of the reporting units wtilizing a methodology consistent with its 2007 annual test. Whenever possible, market information
including the initial public offering price of the Company’s common steck and subsequent trading price was wsed to update the Company’s
assumptions. The methodology utilized a combination of the trading price of the Company’s common stock, an estimated control premium,
trading price market multiples of peer companies (regulated water utilities) and the Company's discounted cash flow analysis based on the
Company's five-year business plan, each of which has differing weights. The majority of the weighting js apphied 1o the traded price as this
represents the market objective evidence of fair value with minimal weight applied to the discounted cash flow analysis,

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s goedwill by reporting unit:

Regulated Nen-regulnted
Uaits

_ Consolidnted

Balance ai' Déceinb $ 012 2,456,952
Impaizment o {750,000
Balange dt- March 312 06952

The Company may be required to recognize additional impairments in the future, depending on, among other factors, a decline over a
period of tirne in the valuation multiples of comparable water utilities, a decline over a period of time of the Company’s stock price or the lack of
appreciation of the Company’s stock price to a level consistent with peer companies or increases in equity value. A decline in the forecasted
results in the Company’s business plan, such as changes in rate case results or capital investment budgets or changes in the Company's
interest rates may also result in an incremental impairment charge.

As a result of the impairment RWE transferred $245,000 to the Company on May 13, 2008, This cask will be used to reduce debt.
9
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 4: Long-Term Debt

The Company primasily incurs long-term debt to fund capital expenditures at the regulated subsidiaries. The components of long-term debt at
March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 were;

Maturity March 31, December 31,

Rate Date 2008 2647

55%-3.20% 86860 T8 196,860

941,439

942,941
VL

T 60%;9 75%

Long-term debt _ 4888930 47243845
d i : e (R = CGTRE9 L LT0048
Total long-term debt 54756799 § 4.795,588

(@) Tax-exempt bonds which are remarketed as money market bonds for periods up to 270 days (1 to 119 days during 2008 and 1 to 127 days during
2007). These bonds may be converted to other short-term variable-rate structures, a fixed-rate structure or subject to redemption.

(I $169,585 of the total represents tax-exempt bonds which are sold at auction rates that are reset every 7 to 35 days. These bonds may be
converted to other short-term variable-sate structures, a fixed-rate structure or subject to redemption. (See Note 13) The remaining $8,560
represents tax-exempt bonds remarketed as money market bonds. See (a) above.

¢} Includes capital lease obligations of $1,946 and $1,982 at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

(d)  Includes fair value adjustments from acquisition purchase accounting,

The following debt was retired through optional redemption or payment at maturity during 2008:

Enterest
Comganv - ) . Type Rate Maturity Amount

Total retirements & redemptions $35,879

Gains from early extinguishment of debt included in Inferest, net amounted to 30 and $7,064 at March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Interest, net includes interest income of approximatety $1,658 and $1,821 at March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively,

10
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Conselidated Fina:}cial Statements (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 5: Short-Term Debt
The components of short-term debt are as follows:

March 31, December 31,

Commiercial paper

Book pverdraft
©ther'short-term debt - ¥ 19
Total short-term debt $368,137 $ 220,514

Note 6: Income Taxes

The Company’s estimated annual effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2008 is 39.1% compared to 41.1%, excluding various
discrete items, for the three months ended March 31, 2007, The change Is primarily attributable to the favorable impact of tax permanent income and
expense items in 2008 as compared to 2007. The Company recorded an effective rate for the first quarter 2008 of (0.6%) which reflects the tax effect of
the goodwill impairment as a discrete itern as the Company considers this charge an infrequently oceurring or snusual event,

Nete 7: Employee Benefits
The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit costs:

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2008 2007

Comgonents of nétperio
Servicecost
. Interestcost i

; rial: IR
Pexjodic pension benefit cost 8,060
Spetialtermination pension benefit chatg i S Sy
Net periodic pension benefit cost $ 8221 $ 8153

‘Fhree Months Ended

March 3%,

nents.of net periodic biheripo

55§

The Company contributed $23,000 to its defined benefit pension plan in the first three months of 2008 and expects to contribute $53,000 during
the balance of 2008. In addition, the Company contributed $5,838 for the funding of its other postretirement plans in the first three months of
2008 and expects to contribute $20,514 during the balance of 2008.

11
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American Water Works Company, Inc, and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 8: Contingencies

OMI/Thames Water Stockton, Inc. (“OMITW") is 2 50/50 joint venture between a subsidiary of the Company and Operations Management
International, Inc, (“OMI”™). In February 2003, OMI/TW and the City of Stockton California (the “City”) entered into a 20-year service contract
for capital improvements and management services of water, wastewater and storm water utilitics, By mutual agreement, OMI/TW and the City
of Stockton terminated the contract effective February 29, 2008 (the “Termination Date’). Upon termination, responsibitity for management and
operation of the system was returned to the City, OMI/TW has agreed to provide a limited twelve month warranty relating to certain
components of the facilities that OMI/TW constructed (the “WW39 Plant”™), committed to pay for certain employee transition costs and
assumed financial responsibility for regutatory fines levied (hwough the Termination Date, if any, resalting from OMVYTW’s failure to comply
with applicable National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit requirements and/or design defects in the WW39 Plant, Also, during
2007, the California State Water Resources Control Board issued a notice of violation and a corresponding Settlement Communication related to
a discharge inte an adjacent river. OMI/TW is responsibie for any fines that may result from the Settiement Communication. Given the
uncertainties related to resolving the remaining issues described above, the Company has a foss reserve of approximately $4,000 at March 31,
2008 and December 31, 2067,

In 2007, the Company, through a subsidiary and an indirect 50% owned joint venture, completed construction of two water filtration plants
for total construction costs of approximately $229,000 and $32,000, respectively, As part of the general contractual terms of the construction
contracts, the Company provides a one-year construction warranty period. As of March 31, 2008, no ¢lzims have been made related o these
warranties.

The Company is also routinely invelved in condemnation procecdings and fegal actions mcident to the normai conduct of its business. At
March 31, 2008, the Company had accrued approximately $5,000 as probable losses and it is reasonably possible that additional losses could
range up to $31,000 for these matters. For certain matters, the Company is unable to estimate any possible losses. The Company believes that
damages or settlements, if any, recovered by plaintiffs in such claims or actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's resulits
of operations, financial position or cash flows,

Note 9: Guarantees

A subsidiary holds a 50% interest in American Water-Pridesa LLC (“"AW-Pridesa"), a Delaware limited liability company. Acciona Agua
Corporation also holds a 56% interest. AW-Pridesa has contracted with Tampa Bay Water (“Tampa Bay™), an interlocal governmental agency of
the State of Florida, to remedy and operate the Tampa Bay Seawater Desalination Flant, The Company entered into a guarantee with Tampa Bay
in November 2004 for the full and prompt performance of certain contractual obligations limited to a towl aggregate Habiliey of $35,000.
Contractual obligations call for certain construction activities and management services to be completed satisfactorily. AW-Pridesa took over
operation of the plant in January 2005. At December 31, 2007, the plant was fuily operational and successful performance testing of the
construction activities had been completed.

The Company provides financial guarantees or deposits to ensure performance of certain of its obligations on its non-regulated military
agreements and Operations & Maintenance agreements. These guarantees and deposits totaled $474,727 and $475,278 at March 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, respeciively.

Note 10: Environmental Matters

The Company's water and wastewater operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign requirements relating to environmental
protection and as such the Company periodically becomes subject to environmenta! claims in the normal course of business, Remediation costs
that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations are accrued when it is probabile that these costs will be incurred and can be
reasenably estimated. Remediation costs accrued amounted to approximatety $11,000 at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007. At March 31,
2008, $106,100 of the reserve relates to a conservation agreement entered

12
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American Water Works Company, Inc, and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

into by a subsidiary of the Company with the National Qceanic and Atmospheric Administration requiring the Company to, among other
provisions, implement certain measures to protect the steethead trout and its habitat in the Carmel River watershed in the state of California. The
Company pursues recovery of incurred costs through aH appropriate meanss, including regulatory recovery through customer rates.

Note 11: Stockholder’s Equity and Net Income (Loss) per Common Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share, income (loss) from continuing operations per common share and income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax per commen share are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net income (foss)
per conunon share, income (loss) from continuing operations per common share and income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax per
commaon share are based on the weighted average number of common shazres ovtstanding and potentially dilutive shares. The Company had no
potentially dilutive shares at March 31, 2008 or December 31, 2007, All common shares at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 were held by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of RWE. (See Note 13)

Effective the first quarter of 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors’ authorized 50,000 shares of par value $9.01 per share preferred stock.
As of March 31, 2008 there are no shares outstanding.

Note 12: Segment Information

The Company has two operating segments which are also the Company's two reportable segments referred to as the Regulated Businesses and
Non-regulated Businesses segments,

13
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unandited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

The following table includes the Company’s sunumarized segment information:

As of or for the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2008

Regulated Non.vegulated . Consolidated

54495347 ; 172 00 L% 5506,815

1 S 63916
Impairment.charg TR 750,000
Total operating expenses, net .. 318215 LITLIT3
Adjusted EBITA( L DT L,900 R
12,268,004

188,437

As of or for the Fhree Months Ended
Mareh 31, 2807

ATEES - e
expenses, net

_ S0 :

954953 284419 3200563 13,1451

CEAGSTAG L 069 ST166,115

(1)  Management evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates resources based on several factors, of which the primary measure is
Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT dees not represent cash flow for periods presented and should not be considered as an alternative to net income

as an indicator of the Company's operating performance or as an alternative to cash flows as a source of liquidity. Adjusted EBIT as defined by
the Company may not be comparable with Adjusted EBIT as defined by other companies.

14
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

The following fable reconciles Adjusted EBIT, as defined by the Company, fo (loss) income from continuing operations before income
taxes:

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2008

Total
Regulated Now-regulated Segments
900 § 76482

(750 090)
HU(13:868)
4,363

< (736.586)

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2007

Reputated
$69:114.

fntcrest net (54,390; {3,006) (57 486)
PJeIen"ed dlwdends 6 (56)
(1,219 (J 218

Segmems incone frontce srations beforsincome taxes =7 | 200 RS 16805
Intcrcsl nei o472
i e : LR 0T
Income from contmumg operations before income faxes § 4159

Note 13: Subsequent Events

On April 28, 2008, the Company compieted the initial public offering of its common stock (“IPO”). RWE Aqua Holdings GmbH, the Company’s
selling stockholder, sold 38,000 shares of its common stock at a price of $21.50 per share. The selting stockholder gtanted the underwriters a 30
day option to purchase up o an additional 8,700 shares of the Company’s stock at a price of $21.50. The Company did not receive any proceeds
from: the sale of shares. Prior to the IPO, the Company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of RWE. After the IPO, and assuming no exercise of the
underwriters’ option, RWE owns approximately 64% of the Company’s common shares (or approximately 58% if the underwriters' option to
purchase additional shares is exercised in full).

On April 22, 2008, RWE confributed 90 shares of the Company’s commen stock to the Company and the Company granted 90 restricted
stock awards, 269 restricted stock units and 2,078 unvested stock options, The awards were issued to the Company’s employees and certain
non-empicyee directors under its 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan.

In April and May 2008, the Company redeemed $144,725 of long-term auction rate debt of subsidiaries with interest rates ranging from
6.48% to 10.00% and maturities ranging from 2021 to 2032. These redemptions were financed through the issuance of additional commercial

paper.
in May 2008, AWCC plans to issue in private placements additional senior notes in the principal amounts of $110,000 at 6.25% due in 2018
and $90,0G0 at 6.55% due in 2023, The Company intends te use the proceeds to repay cuistanding short-term indebtedness of AWCC,
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American Water Works Company, Inc, and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consoelidated Financial Statements {(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

On May 12, 2008, the Company commenced an offer to exchange $750,000 principal amount of its 6.085% Senior Notes due in 2017 and
$750,000 principal amount of its 6.593% Senior Notes due in: 2037 which are both registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Exchange
Notes”) for all $750,000 of its currently outstanding 6.085% Senior Notes due in 2017 and all $750,000 of its currently owtstanding 6.593% Senior
Notes due in 2037, which have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 {the “Original Notes™). The Company will not receive any
proceeds from the exchange offer, nor will the Company’s debt level change as a result of the exchange offer. The terms of the Exchange Notes
and the Original Notes are substantially identical in material respects,

16

TN-TRA-01-Q003, Attachment



Tabl nis

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters within this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q include “forward-fooking statements™ within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements inciuded in this Form 10-Q,
other than statements of historical fact, may constitute forward-icoking statements. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words
such as “may,” Yhould,” Wil Couid,” Estimates," Predicts,” Potential,” Yontinue,” Haticipates,” Believes,” Plans,” Expects,” future” and
“intends” and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause
the actual results or performance to differ from those projected in the forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future
performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond our control and difficult to predict and could cause
actual results to differ materiafly from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to
differences in results and outcomes from those in our forward-looking statements inchude, without limitation, those items discussed in the “Risk
Factors” section or other sections in the Company’s Form 424(b){4) prospectus fited April 24, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange Commission, as
well as in Ttem EA of Part If of this Quarterly Report. Al forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by such risk factors. We
undertake no obligation, other than as required by law, to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise,

GENERAL

American Water Works Company, Inc. (herein referred to as “American Water” or the “Company™) is the largest investor-owned United States
water and wastewater utility company, as measured both by operating revenue and population served. Owr primary business involves the owsership
of water and wastewater utilities that provide water and wastewater services to residential, commercial and industrial customers. The businesses that
provide these services are generally subject to economic regulation by state regulatory agencies in the states in which they operate. We report these
results in our Regulated Businesses segment. We also provide services that are not subject to regulation by the state copymissions. We report these
results in our Non-regulated Businesses segment. For further description of our businesses see the “Business” section found in our Form 424(b)(4}
prospectus filed on Aprit 24, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

‘You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our Conselidated Financial Statements and related Notes included elsewhere in
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in our Frospectus filed with the SEC on April 24, 2008 and with the information under the heading
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations” in our Form 424(b)(4) prospectus filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 24, 2008.

OVERVIEW

Financial Results. American Water had net loss of $732.5 million for the first quarter of 2008, compared to net income of $2.7 miltion for the first
quarter of 2007, Loss from conlinuing operations was $732.5 million for the first quarter of 2008, compared 1o income from continuing operations of $2.4
million for the first quaster of 2007, Revenues for the first quarter of 2008 increased by $38.3 million compared to the same period in the prior year
primarily due to increased revenses in our Regulated Businesses of $30.3 million which is largely attributable to rate increases and higher revenues in
owr Non-regulated Businesses of $7.9 miltion. Offsetting the increased revenues were $781.9 million higher operating expenses for the three months
ended March 31, 2008, These expenses primarily resulted from the impairment charge of $750.0 million which is discussed below, increased expenses in
our Regulated Businesses of $27.0 million in first quarter of 2008 compared to 2007, mainly driven by higher employee related costs due to an increase
in the number of employees, as well as higher wages and benefits and increased operating expenses in our Non-regulated Businesses of $6.8 million
which corresponds with their increased revenues.
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Other items affecting income from continuing operations for the three months ended March 31, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior
vear inciude lower interest expense of $2.2 million, as a result of the repayment of outstanding debt, and lower income tax expense of $5.8 million.

Financing Activities. During the three months ended March 31, 2008, we met owr capital resource requirements primarily with internafly
generated cash as well as funds from external sources, primarily commercial paper.

Regulatory Developments. In the first three months of 2008 we received authorizations for additional annualized revenues from general rate
cases of $26.0 million, assuming constant sales volumes, As of March 31, 2008 we were awaiting final orders for one genetal rate case that was filed in
2006, requesting $7.0 million in total additional annual revenues and five gencral cases that were filed in 2007, requesting $58.2 mitlion in total
additional atnual revenues. We filed general rate cases in five additional states in the first quarter of 2008 that would provide $231.1 million of
additional revenues, if approved as filed. There is no assurance that the filed amount, or any portion thereof, of any requested increases will be
granted.

Initial Public Gffering. On April 28, 2008, the Company completed its initial public offering (“IPO™). RWE Aqua Holdings GmbH, the Company's
selling stockholder, sold 58.0 milkion shases of the Company’s common stock at a price of $21.50 per share. The selling stockholder granted the
underwriters a 30 day option to purchase up to an additional 8.7 million shares of the Company’s stock at a price of $21.50. The Company did not
receive any proceeds from the sale of shares. Prior to the 1PO, the Company was a wholiy-owned subsidiary of RWE. After the PO, and assuming no
exercise of the underwriters’ option, RWE owns approximately 64% of the Company’s common shares {or approximately 58% if the underwriters’
option to purchase additional shares is exercised in full).

On April 22, 2008, RWE contributed approximatety 89.9 thousand shares of the Company’s commott stock to the Company and the Company
granted approximately 89.9 thousand restricted stock awards, 269.3 thousand restricted stock units and 2,1 milkion unvested stock options. The awards
were issued to the Company’s employees and certain non-employee directors under our 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan,

Impairment Charge. As previously disclosed in our free writing and final prospectuses, filed April 22, 2008 and April 24, 2008, respectively, the
Company determined that it was reasonably likely based in large part on an initial public offering price of ouwr commen stock of $21.50, that the current
carrying value of our goodwill which the Company recorded as a result of the 2003 acquisition of American Water by RWE and acquisition of E'Town
Corporation in 2001, was impaired. At the time the Comparty’s initial public offering price of $21.50 was established, we were unable to determine if
there was any goodwill impairment or 1o provide a reliable estimate of the amount of any goodwill impairment, if any.

In light of the initial public offering price and trading levels in our stock since the date of IPO, we performed an interim impairment test and on
May 9, 2008, we concluded that the current carrying value of our goodwill was impaired as a result of the current market price and trading levels of our
common stock. We believe the offering price was indicative of the value of the Company at March 31, 2008 and accordingly, based on those factors,
we recorded an impairment charge to goodwill related to owr Regulated Businesses of $750.0 million in our financial statements as of and for the fiscal
quarter ended March 31, 2008. The impairment charge was primarily due to the market price of our common stock (both the initial pubiic offering price
and the price dusing subsequent trading) being less than what was anticipated during our 2007 anrtual test. Also contributing 1o the impairment was a
decline in the fair value of our debt (due to increased market interest rates).

In developing our estimated fair value of the Company’s reporting units, significant judgment was required. We determined the estimated fair
value of the reporting units utilizing a methodology consistent with 1ts 2007 annual test. Whenever possible, market information including the initial
public offering price of the Company's common stock and subsequent trading price was used to update our modeling assumptions. Qur methodology
utilized a combination of the trading price of the Company's common stock, an estimated control premium, trading price market multiples of peer
companies (regulated water utilities) and the Company's discounted cash flow analysis based on our five-year business plan were used, each of which
has differing weights. The majority of the weighting is applied to the traded price as this represents the market objective evidence of fair value with
minimal weight appiied to the discounted cash flow analysis,
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We may be required to recognize additional impairments in the future, depending on, among other factors, a decline over a period of time in
valuation multiples of comparable water utiiities, a decline over a period of time of the Company's stock price or the lack of appreciation of the
Company’s stock price to a level consistent with peer companies or increases in equity value. A decline in the forecasted results in our business plan,
such as changes it rate case results or capital investment budgets or changes in owr interest rates, may also result in an incremental impatrment
charge. Farther recognition of impalrments of a significant portion of goodwill would negatively affect our resulis of operations and tota
capitalization, the effect of which could be material and could make it more difficult for us to secure financing on attractive terms and maintain
compliance with our debt covenarnts.

Ag aresult of the impairment, RWE tansferred $245.0 miilion on May 13, 2008. This cash will be used to reduce debt.

Resuits of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 Compared To Three Months Ended March 31, 2007

For the three monihs ended Favoralle
March 31, {Unfavorable)

Change

(Dollars in thousands)

Operatinig revenye
Operating expenses

Y
CUAT,880 0
106
S e (750,000)
1177473 395,226 (781,947
S(670,358) 1 73318 (1435676)

69968 2,239

2,54}

(32 484) 24 s 013)
icome (foss) From discontified ope 5 TIEEOF faxt: : 86 - {256)
Net income (loss) $ (732,484) $ 2,685 $ (735,169)
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The following table summatizes certain financial information for our Reguiated and Non-regulated Businesses for the periods indicated (without
giving effect to inter-segment ¢liminations):

For the three months ended March 31,

2608 2807
Non- Non-
Remdatod regulsted Regulated aulated
Businesses Businesces Businesses Businesses

4.

7

Operating ]
$ 69,114

Adjusted ERIT'

4 Adjusted EBIT is defined as earnings before interest and income taxes from continuing operations, Management evaluates the performance of
its segments and aliocates resources based on several factors, of which the primary measure is Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT does not
represent cash flow for the periods presented and should not be considered as an alternative to net income as an indicator of the Company’s
operating performance of as an alternative to cash flows as a source of Hquidity. Adjusted EBIT as defined by the Company may not be

comparable with Adjusted EBIT as defined by other companies.

$ 3701

Operating revenues Our primary business involves the ownership of water and wastewater utilities that provide water and wastewater services
to residential, commercial and industrial customers. As such, our results of operations are significantly impacted by rates authorized by the state
regulatory commissions in the states in which we operate. The table below details the annuaiized revenues (assuming constant sates volumes)
resuiting from rate authorizations, including infrastructure charges, which were granted and became effective in 2008,

Annualized Rate

Increases Granted (5

(n milliens)

Arizoh .
West Virginia *

(*}  Includes infrastructure charges

Operating revenues increased by $38.3 million, or 8,2% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2007. Regulated Businesses revenues increased by $30.3 million, or 7.2% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the same
period in the prior year, The Non-regulated Businesses’ revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2008 increased by $7.9 million, or 14.8%

compared to the three months ended March 31, 2007,

The increase in the Regulated Businesses revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the three months ended March 31,
2007 was primarily due to rate increases obtained through genezal rate cases in New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Missousi and Indiana (which were granted
and became effective in 2007) as well as other states totaling approximately $33.0 million. This increase was offset by a $4.7 million decrease in
revenues related to customer consumption, mainly in our states in the Western region of the United States, for the three months ended March 31, 2008

compared to the same period in the prior year.
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The following table sets forth the percentage of Regulated Businesses' revennes and water sales volume by customer class:

For tiie three months ended March 31,

Operating Revenes Water Sales Yolume

Castomer Class 2008 2007
32.0%
21:59%

11.4%
9%

00:0%

Water Services - Water service operating revenues from residential customers for the three months ended March 31, 2008 totaled $257.2 million,
4 $16.6 million increase, or 6.9%, over the same period of 2007, maialy due to rate increases offset by a decrease in sales volume. The volume of water
sold to residential customers decreased by 2.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to 45.2 billion gallons, from 46.3 billion gallons for the
same peried in 2007, largely as a result of wetter weather conditions in California.

Water service operating revenues from commercial water customers for the three months ended Mazch 31, 2008 increased by $4.2 million, or
5.4%, to $82.9 million mainly due to rate increases offset by decreases in sales volume compared fo the same period in 2007, The volume of water sold
to commercial customers decreased by 3.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2008, to 18.9 billion gatlons, from 19.5 billion galioas for the three
months ended March 31, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from industrial customers totaled $23.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008, an increase of $1.5
million, or 6.7%, over those recorded for the same period of 2007 mainly due to rate increases and increased sales volume. The volume of water sold to
industrial customers totaled 9.9 billion gatiens in the three months ended March 31, 2008, an increase of 1.0% over the 9.8 billion gations for the three
months ended March 31, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from public and other customers increased $3.8 miltion, or 7.0%, for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to
$57.8 million from $54.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007 mainly due to rate increases. Revenues from mumnicipal governments for fire
protection services and customers requiring special private fire service facilities totaled $25.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008, an
increase of $1.1 million over the same period of 2007, Revenues generated by sales to governmental entities and resale customers for the three months
ended March 31, 2008 totaled $32.2 million, an increase of $2.7 miltion from the three months ended March 31, 2007,

Wastewater services - Our subsidiaries provide wastewater services in 11 states. Revenues from these services increased by $0.2 milion, or
1.1%, to $18.8 miltion for the three months ended March 31, 2008, from $18.6 million for the same period of 2007, The increase was attributable to
increases in rates charged to customers in states where we have wastewater operations (principally Arizona, Hawai, and New Jersey).

Non-regulated Businesses operating revenues increased by $7.9 miilion, or 14.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the
same period in 2007, The net increase was primarily attributable to higher revenues of $8.7 million in our Contract Operations Group and $1.7 million in
out Homeowner Services Group, partially offset by decreased revenues of $3.0 million in our Applied Water Group. The increase in Contract
Operations Group revenues was primarily due to both new contracts and incremental revenues associated with design and build contraets, as well as
increased military project revenues. The increase from our Homeowner Sexvice Group represented expansion into new geographic markets. Applied
Water Group revenues were lower due to the decline in design and build activity resulting from the downtarn in new home construction,
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Operation and maintenance. Operation and maintenance expense increased $28.6 million, or 10.1%, for the three months ended March 31, 2008
compared to the same period in the prior vear.

Operatien and maintenance expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, by major expense category, were as follows:

¥or the three months endled
March 31,

2008 2007

8,348 9475

Production costs, including fuel and power, purchased water, chemicals and waste disposal increased by $3.1 million, or 5.0%, for the three
months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007, The increase was primarily the result of increased costs in our Regulated
Businesses of $2.7 million. Fuel and power costs were higher by $1.6 million which can be atiributed to increases in electricity prices. Chemical costs
also increased by $0.5 million primarily due to rising chemical costs and waste disposal costs were also higher by $0.6 million.

Employee-related costs including wage and salary, group insurance, and pension expense increased $17.1 million or 15.5%, for the three months
ended March 31, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. These costs represented 40.7% and 38.8% of operation and maintenance
expenses for the theee months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The increase was due to higher wage and salary expenses of $10.2 million
and $2.2 million in owr Regulated and Non-reguiated Businesses, respectively, primarily resulting from an increase in the number of employees and
wage rate increases. In addition, our Regulated Businesses’ pension expense increased by 33.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared
to the same period in the prior year. Pension expense in excess of the amotnt confributed to the pension plans is deferred by certain of cur regulated
subsidiaries pending future recovery in rates as contributions are made to the plans. Although our pension expense in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, “Employers” Accounting for Pensions” (SFAS 87) remained relatively unchanged, pension expense increased
for the three months ended March 31, 2008 due to increased contributions in certain of cur regulated operating companies whose costs are recovered
based on the Company’s funding, rathes than the SFAS 87 expense.

Operating supplies and services include the day-to-day expenses of office operation, legal and other professional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipment rental charges. For the three months ended March 31, 2008, these costs increased by $5.7 million or
8.9%, compared to the same period in 2007, Factors contributing to this increase include an overall increase in general office costs of $1.0 million
mainly due to inflation, higher legal costs of $0.7 million in one of our operating companies in the Midwest region of the Usited States due to eminent
domain proceedings, increased materials and supplies of $0.5 million and higher fuef and other transportation costs of $0.5 millon. Partially offsetting
these increases was a decrease of $1.8 million in remediation costs in connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Corresponding with the increase in
revenues, the Non-regulated Businesses operating supplies and service expenses increased by $2.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008
compared to the same period in the prior year. The increase is mainly attributabie to additional expense in the Contract Operations group associased
with several operating contracts (including a design, build and operate project in Filmore, California), partially offset by Iower contracted services
costs in the Applied Water Management Group due to the downtwrn in new home construction.
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Maintenance materials and services, which include emergency repairs as well as costs for preventive maintenance, increased $4.8 million or by
15.9%, for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. Regulated Businesses” maintenance materials and
service costs increased by $4.4 million in the first quarter of 2008 due to costs of $2.8 miltion associated with a project in Hlinois to maintain valves and
higher cost of removal expenses in certain of our operating companies, These increases were offset by fower main break costs in 2008 compared to
higher than normal main breaks in a number of our operating companies due to winter weather conditions in the first quarter of 2007.

Customer billing and accounting expenses decreased by $0.9 mifkion or 10.4%, for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the same
period in the prior year. The decrease was the result of lower uncollectible accounts expense by our regulated subsidiaries as a result of an increased
focus on cellection of past due accounts.

Other operation and maintenance expenses include casualty and liability insurance premiums and regulatory costs. These costs decreased by
$1.1 million or 11.9%, in 2008 primarily due to decreased insurance costs of $0.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 due fo more
favorable claims experience compared to the three months ended March 31, 2007, as well as decreased regulatory expenses of $0.4 million.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $0.7 million, or 1.1%, for the three months ended
March 31, 2008 compared to the same peried in the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to depreciation rate adjustments, particularly in our
Pennsylvania subsidiary offset by increased expense due to additional utility plant placed in service.

General taxes. Genera) taxes expense, which includes taxes for property, payroll, gross receipts, and other miscellansous items, increased by
$4.2 million, or 8.7%, in the first quarter of 2008 compared to the first quarter of 2007. This increase is primarily due to increased gross receipts taxes of
$1.9 million in New Jersey and higher propetty taxes expense in Ohio of $1.4 million.

(Gain} loss on sale of assets. Our gain on sale of assets was $0.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to a loss of $0.1
million for the three months ended March 31, 2007 due to non-recurring sales of assets not needed in our utility operations.

Impairment charge. Our impairment charge was $750.0 milkion for the three months ended Mazch 31, 2008, The first quarter 2008 impairment
charge was primarily due to the market price of the Company’s common stock (both the initial public effering price and the price during subsequent
trading) being less than what was anticipated during our 2007 annual test. Also contributing to the impairment was a decline in the fair value of the
Company’s debt (due to increased interest rates). Theze was no impairment charge Tor the three months ended March 31, 2007,

Other Income (deductions). Inierest, the primary component of our other income {deductions), decreased by $2.2 million, or 3.1% for the three
months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. The decline is primarily due to the repayment of outstanding debt with
the 2007 equity contributions from RWE that were made to establish a capital structizre that is consistent with other regulated utilitics and also to meet
the capital structure expectations of various state regulatory commissions.

Provision for income taxes, Our consolidated provision for income taxes decreased $5.8 million or 337.1%, to a tax benefit of $4.1 million for the
three months ended March 31, 2008 from a tax expense of $1.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007, The Company recorded an effective
tax rate for the first quarter 2008 of (0.6%) which reflects the tax effect of the goodwill impairment as a discrete item as we consider this charge an
infrequently occurring or unusual event.

Net income (loss). Net income decreased $735.2 million, o a net 1oss of $(732.5) million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 from net
income of $2.7 milkion for the three months ended March 31, 2007, The deerease is the result of the aforementioned changes.
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Liguidity and Capital Resources

Our business is capital intensive and requires considerable capital resources. A portion of these capital resources are provided by internaily
gencrated cash flows from operations. When necessary we obtain funds from external sources in the capital markets and through bank borrowings.
Our access to external financing on reasonable terms depends on our credit ratings and current business conditions, including that of the water utility
industry in general as well as conditions in the debt or equity capital markets. If these business and market conditions deteriorate to the extent that we
no longer have access o the capital markets at reasonable terms, we have access to revolving credit facilities with aggregate bank commitments of
$810.0 million that we currently utitize 1o support our commercial paper programs and to issue letters of credit. See the “Credit Facilities and Short-Term
Debt” section below for further discussion.

In addition, our regulated utility subsidiaries receive advances and contributions from customers, home butlders and real estate developers to
fund construction necessary to extend service to new arcas, Advances for construction are refundable for limited periods, which vary according to
state regulations, as new customers begin to receive service or other contractual obligations are fulfilled. Amounts which are no fonger refundabie are
reclassified to contributions in aid of construction. Utility plant funded by advances and contributions s excluded from rate base. Generally, we
depreciate contributed property and amortize contributions at the composite rate of the refated property. Some of our subsidiaries do not depreciate
contributed property, based on regulatory guidelines.

We use capital resources, including cash, to fund capital requirements, including construction expenditures, pay off maturing debt, pay
dividends, funid pension and postretirement welfare obligations and invest in new and existing businesses. We spend a significant amount of cash on
construction projects that have a long-term return on investment. Additionally, we operate in rate-regulated environments in whick the amount of new
investmenl recovery may be limited, and where such recovery takes place over an extended period of time, as our recovery is subject to regulatory lag.
As a result of these factors, our working capital, defined as current assets less current liabilities, was in 2 net deficit position at March 31, 2008,

We expect to fund future maturities of long-term debt through a combination of external debt and cash flow from operations. We have no plans
to reduce debt significantly.

Cash Flows from Operating Activifies

Cash flows from operating activities primarily result from the sale of water and wastewater services and due to the seasonality of operations are
weighted toward the third quarter of each fiscal year. Our future cash flows from operating activities will be affected by changes in the rate regulatory
environments; infrastructure investment; inflation; compliance with environmental, health and safety standards; production costs; customer growth;
declining per customer usage of water; and weather and seasonality. Cash flows from operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2008
were 385.4 million compared to $54.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007.

The following table provides a summary of the major items affecting our cash flows from operating activities for the three months ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007

For the three months
ended March 3%

208 2687
. inﬂl,l,mus?nds)
Netincome (o o B(732.484) 05§ 2,685

operating activi

n working capital (2) o ' - 21,14 4911)
Pension and postretirement healthca biitio : g : e 125453)
Net cash flows provided by operations § 85,391 $ 54211

(1) Includes depreciation and amortization, impairment charges, removal costs net of salvage, provision for deferred income taxes, amoztization of
deferred investment tax credits, provision for losses on utility accounts receivable, aflowance for other funds used during construction, (gain)
loss on sale of assets, and other non-cash items, net less pension and postretirement healthcare contributions.

{2)  Changes in working capital include changes to accounts receivable and unbilled utility revenue, taxes receivable (including federal income),
other current assets, accounts payable, taxes acerued (including federal income}, interest accrued and other current liabilities.
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Cashk Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were $187.7 million and $165,2 miilion, respectively.
Construction expenditures increased $22.3 million to $188.4 miltion for the three months ended March 31, 2008 from $166.1 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2007 as a result of continuing to increase our investment in regulated utifity plant projects. Construction expendituzes for the periods
noted above inchxded customer advances and contributions for construction (net of refunds) of ($13.7) million and $13.1 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Our construction program consists of both infrastructure renewal programs, where we replace infrastructure, as needed, and construction of
facilities to meet new customer growth. Also, an integral aspect of our strategy is t0 seek growth through tuck-ins and other acquisitions which are
complementary to our existing business and support the continued geographical diversification and growth of our operations. Generally, acquisitions
wili be funded initially with short-term debt and later refinanced with the proceeds from long-term debt or equity offerings.

Included in the 2008 planned construction expenditures is an amount to construct a new water treatment plant on the Kentucky River of
approximately $2¢ million. On April 25, 2008, the Kentucky Public Service Commission approved Kentucky American Water’s application for a
certificate of convenience and necessity to construct a 20.0 to 25.0 millior gallon per day treatment plant on the Kentucky River and a 30.6 mile
pipeline to meet Central Kentucky’s water supply deficit. The Kentucky project is expected to be completed by 2010 with an estimated cost of between
$162 million and $168 million,

On December 21, 2007, New Jersey-American Water, our subsidiary, signed an agreement with the City of Trenton, New Jersey to purchase the
assets of the city’s water system located in Ewing, Hamilton, Hopewell and Lawrence townships for $100.0 million. The agreement was approved by
the Trenton City Council but requires approval by various regulatory agencies, including the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities. We can provide n:o
assurances that the agreement will be approved.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our financing activities inciude the issuance of long-term and short-term debt, primarily through our wholly-owned financing subsidiary,
American Water Capital Corp. (“"AWCC”), In addition, we have received capital contributions from RWE and intend to issue equity in the future to
maintain an appropriate capital structure, subject to any restrictions in our registration right agreement with RWE. In order to finance new
infrastructure, we received customer advances and contributions for construction (net of refunds) of ($13.7) million and $13.1 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In copnection with the RWE divestiture, we have made and will continue to make significant
changes to our capital stracture through debt refinancing and equity offerings.

The following long-term debt was retired through optional redemption or payment at maturity during the first quarter of 2008:

Interest Ammourd
o R N {n Thousands)
ter Capitat Corp. - 6.87%: 28000
0%-9.87% 7,879

Other subsidiaries

2008-2034
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In Aprit and May 2008, the Company redeemed $144.7 million of long-term auction rate debt of subsidiaries with interest rates ranging from
6.48 % to 10.00% and maturities ranging from 2021 to 2032. These redemptions were financed through the issuance of additional commercial paper.

In May 2008, AWCC plans to issue in private placements additional Senior Notes in the principal amount of $1310.0 million at 6.25% due in 2018
and $90.0 million at 6.55% due in 2023, The Company intends to use the procesds to repay outstanding short-term indebtedness of AWCC.

On May 12, 2008, the Company commenced an offer to exchange $750,000 principal amount of its 6.085% Senior Notes due it 2017 and $750,000
principal amount of its 6.593% Senior Notes due in 2037 which are both registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Exchange Notes™) for all
$750,000 of its currently outstanding 6.085% Senior Notes due in 2017 and all $750,000 of its currently outstanding 6.593% Senior Notes due in 2037,
which have not been registered undes the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Original Notes™}. The Company will not receive any proceeds from the exchange
offer, nior will the Company’s debt level change as a result of the exchange offer. The terms of the Exchange Notes and the Origina) Notes are
substantially identical in all material respects.

From time to time and as market conditions warrant, we may engage in long-term debt retirements via tender offers, open market repuschases or
other viable alternatives to strengthen our balance sheet.

Dividends. There were no dividend payments made for the three months ended March 31, 2008 or 2007. Our board of directors has adopted a dividend
policy, effective upon the consummation of the PO, to distribute to our stockholders a portion of our net cash provided by operating activities as
regular quarterly dividends, rather than retaining that cash for other purposes. Our policy will be to distribute 50% to 70% of our annual net income.

Contributions from RWE. There were no contributions from RWE for the three months ended March 31, 2008, Contributions from RWE were $650.0
million for the three months ended March 31, 2007,

As a result of the impairment charges recorded for the three morths ended March 31, 2008, RWE transferred $245.0 million on May 13, 2008, This cash
will be used to reduce debt.

Credit Facilities and Short Term Debt
The components of short-term debt were as foliows:

March 31,2008

338,619
73,08l
R 06,437

368,137

Cotiiercial paper=: .

Our access to external financing on reasonable terms depends on our credit ratings and current business conditions, including that of the water
utility industry in general as well as conditions in the debt or equity capital markets. If these business and market conditions deteriorate to the extent
that we no longer have access to the capital markets at reasonable terms, we have access to revolving credit facilities with aggregate bank
commitments of $810.0 miliion that we currently wtilize to support our commercial paper programs and to issue letters of credit.

AWCC has entered into a one-year $10.0 million committed revolving line of credit with PNC Bank, N.A. This line of credit will terminate on
Becember 31, 2008 unless extended and is used primarily for short-term working capital needs, nterest rates on advances under this line of credit are
based on either the prime rate of PNC Bank, N.A. or the applicable LIBOR for the term selected plus 25 basis points, As of March 31, 2008, $6.4 million
was outstanding under this revolving line of credit.
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On September 15, 2006, AWCC entered into an $800.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility syndicated among a group of ten banks, This
revolving credit facility, which terminates on September 15, 2012 unless extended, is principally used to support the $700 million commercial paper
program at AWCC and to provide up to $150.0 milkion in letters of credit. AWCC had no loans outstanding under the net $800.0 million unsecured
revolving credit facility as of March 31, 2008,

At March 31, 2008, AWCC had the following sub-limits and available capacity under the revolving credit facility and indicated amounts of
outstanding commercial paper.

Outstanding

Letter of Credit Available Commercial
Sublimit Capacity - Raper
(In thousands) 0 [i; (Ia thousands)
g $ 338,619

Interest rates on advances under the revolving credit facility are based on either prime or LIBOR plus an applicable margin based upon our credit
ratings, as well as total outstanding amounts under the agreement at the time of the borrowing. The maximum LIBOR margin is 55 basis points.

The revolving credit facility requires us to maintain a ratio of consolidated debt to consclidated capitalization of not more than 0.70 to 1.00. As of
March 31, 2008, our ratic was 0.53 and therefore we were in compliance with the ratio.

The average interest rate on commercial paper for the three months ended March 31, 2008 was approximately 4.2 %,

Debt Covenanis

Our debt agreements contain financial and non-financial covenants. To the extent that we are not in compliance, we or our subsidiaries may be
restricted in our ability to pay dividends, issue debt or access our revolving credit lines. We were in compliance with cur reporting covenants as of
March 31,2008,

Security Ratings

Qur access to the capital markets, including the commercial paper market, and their respective financing costs in those markets depend on the
securities ratings of the entity that is accessing the capital markets, We primarily access the capital markets, including the commercial paper market,
through AWCC. However, we do issue debt at our regulated subsidiaries, primarily in the form of tax exempt securities, to lower our overall cost of
debt. The following table shows the Company’s securities ratings as of March 31, 2008;

Moody’s Investors Standard & Poor's

Securities P _Service Ratings Service
Seniorinsecured debt CAR
Commercial paper

s
The Standard & Poor’s ratings on American Water and AWCC remain on CreditWatch with negative implications. Moody's rating outlook for
both American Water and AWCC s stable.

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, seH or hold securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency, and each rating shouid be evaluated independently of any other rating.

Nome of our borrowings are subject to default or prepayment as a result of a downgrading of securities although such a downgrading could
increase fees and interest charges under our credit facilities,

As part of the normal course of business, we routinely enter into contracts for the purchase and sale of water, energy, fuels and other services,
These contracts either contain express provisions or otherwise permit us and our counterparties to demand adequate assurance of future performance
when there are reasonable grounds for doing so. In accordance with the contracts and applicable contract iaw, if we are downgraded by a credit rating
agency, especially if such downgrade is to a level below investment grade, it is possible that a counterparty would attempt to rely on such a
downgrade as a basis for making a demand for adequate assurance of future performance. Depending on our net position with a counterparty, the
demand could be for the posting of collateral. In the absence of expressly agreed provisions that specify the collateral that must be provided, the
obligation to supply the coHateral requested will be a function of the facts and circumstances of the Company’s situation at the time of the demand. If
we can teasonably claim that we are willing and financialy able to perform our obligations, it may be possible to successfully argue that no collateral
should be posted or that only an amount equal to two or three months of future payments should be sufficient.
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Current Credit Market Position

The liquidity crisis that began in 2007 as a result of the collapse of the subprime mortgage market has adversely impacted global credit markets
and, if it continues, could increase our cost of capital or impair our ability to access the capital markets.
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As of March 31, 2008, the Company had issued $169.6 million of auction rate tax-exempt long-term debt (including $24.9 milkion of varjable rate
demand bonds, which are periodically repriced to reflect auction rates) that are insured by AAA-rated insurers Ambac Assurance Corporation and
MBIA Insurance Corporation. Due to the exposure that these bond insurers have in connection with recent developments in the subprime credit
market, rating agencies have put these insurers on review for possible downgrade. Fitch has lowered the credit rating of Ambac Assurance
Corporation from AAA to AA. While these debt instruments are long-term in nature, and only the variable rate demand bonds can be put back to the
Company prior to maturity, the interest rates on these instruments are designed to resel periodically through an suction process. In late February 2008,
the Company began to experience failed auctions for a portion of these instruments, which had interest rates of 3.65% to 4.90% as of December 31,
2007, When a failed auction occurs on a series of this debt, the Company is required to begin paying 2 failed-auction rate on the instruments. The
failed auction interest rate for the majority of the auction ate debt is 10%. Payment of the failed-auction rate interest rates will continue until the
Company is able to either successfully remarket these instruments through the auction process or refund and refinance the existing debt through the
issuance of an equivalent amount of tax exempt bonds. In Aprit and May 2008, the Company redeemed $144.7 million of long-term auction rate debt of
subsidiaries with interest rates ranging from 6.48 % to 10.00% and maturities ranging from 2021 to 2032,

At this time, the Company does not believe recent market developments significantly tmpact its ability to obtain financing and cxpects to have
access (o liguidity in the capital markets on favorable terms. In addition, the Company has access to unsecured revolving credit facilities, which are
not as dependent upon general market conditions, with aggregate bank conumitments of $810 milkion, of which a portion is currently committed
primarily to backstop the Company’s commercial paper program and letters of credit.,

Marker Risk

We are exposed to market risk assoctated with changes in commodity prices, equity prices and interest rates, We use a combination of fixed-rate
and variable-rate debt to reduce interest rate exposure. As of March 31, 2008 a hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates assoclated with variable rate
debt would result in $1.1 miilion decrease in our pre-tax earnings. OQur risks asseciated with price increase for chemicals, electricity and other
commodities are reduced through long-term contracts and the ability to recover price increases through rates.

Our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on April 23, 2008. The market price of our common stock may experience
fluctuations, many of which are unrelated to our operating performance. In particular, our stock price may be affected by general market movements as
well as developments specifically related to the water and wastewater industry. These could include, among other things, interest rate movements,
guarterly variations or changes in financial estimates by securities analysts and governmental or regulatory actions. This volatility may make it
difficult for us to access the capital markets in the future through additional offerings of our common stock, regardiess of our financial performance,
and such difficulty may preclude us from being able to take advantage of certain business opportunities or meet business obligations,

Application of Critical unnting Polic Himat

Qur financiai condition, results of operations and cash flows are impacted by the methods, assumptions and estimates used in the application of
critical accounting policies. See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Critical Accounting
Policies and Estitnates,” in ouzr Form 424(b)(4) prospectus filed on April 24, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange Commission for a discussion of the
critical accounting policies.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Part 1, Item: | Financial Statements (Unaudited)- Note 2- New Accounting Pronouncements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for a
discussion of new accounting standards recently adopted or pending adoption.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE PISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to market risks in the normal course of business, including changes in interest rates and equity prices. For further discussion of
market risks see “Market Risk™ in Part ], Item 2 ~ Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,

1FEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports
filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act™), is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within
the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company's
management including its prineipal executive and financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s management evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) of the Exchange Act. This evaluation was done under the supervision and with the
participation of management, including our President and Chief Bxecutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer.

Based on this evaluation and becayse of the material weaknesses described below, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of March 31, 2008, Notwithstanding these
material weaknesses, management conciuded that the financial statements included in this Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2008 fairly
present in all material respects their financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with GAAP.

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A material weakness is a control deficiency or a combination of control deficiencies that results in more than a remote likelihcod that a materiat
misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reposting and the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. However, from 2003 to April 28, 2008, we were an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiazy of RWE and, as a privately owned company, were not required to maintain a system of internal control consistent with the requirements of
the SEC and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or to prepare our own financial statements, As a public reporting company, we will be required, among other
things, to maintain a system of effective internal contrel over financial reporting suitable to prepare our publicly reported financial statements in a
timely and accurate manner, and also to evaluate and report on such system of internal control. In particular, we are required to certify our compliance
with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the year ended December 31, 2009, which will require us to perform system and process evaluation and
testing of our internal control over financial reporting to allow management and our independent registered public accounting firm to report on the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting.

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2006, we and owr independent registered public

accountants identified the following material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting:

+  Inadequate internal staffing and skills;

*  Inadequate controls over financial reporting processes;

*  Inadequate controls over month-end closing processes, including account reconciliations:

*  Imadequate controls over maintenance of contracts and agreements;

*  Inmadequate controls over segregation of duties and restriction of access to key accounting applications; and

*  Inadeguate controls over fax accounting and accruals.
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Remediation of Material Weaknesses

Since joining the Compasy in 2006, Donald L. Correll, our Chief Executive Officer, and Ellen C, Wolf, our Chief Financial Officer, have assigned a
high priority to the evaluation and remediation of our internal controls, and have taken numerous steps to remediate these material weaknesses and to
evaluate and strengthen our other internal controls over financial reporting. Some of the actions taken include:

*  Increasing our internal financial seaff numbers and skill levels, and sing external resources to

+  suppiement our internal staff when necessary;

*  Implementing detailed processes and procedures refated to our period end financial closing processes,

= key accounting applications and our financial reporting processes;

+  Implementing or enbancing systems used in the financial reporting processes and month-end close processes;

¢« Conducting extensive fraining on existing and newly developed processes and procedures as well as explaining to employees Sarbanes-
Oxley Act requirements and the value of intemal controls;

*  Enhancing our infernal audit staff;
= Hiring a director of internal control and a director of faxes;
*  Implementing a tracking mechanism and new policy and procedure for approval of all contracts and agresments; and

*  Retaining a nationally recognized accounting and auditing firm to assist management in developing policies and procedures surrounding
internal controls over financial reporting, to evaluate and test these internal controls and (o assist in the remediation of internal control
deficiencies.

With respect to the material weaknesses described above, we have initiated a process to clearly delineate our control weaknesses and
formulated a remediation plan. We believe that we have made significant progress in remediating several of the identified material weaknesses;
however, as our testing procedures have not yet been completed, we can make no assurances as to the success of our remediation efforts. As of
March 31, 2008, the Company had incurred $54.9 million to remediate these matetial weaknesses and (o document and test key financial reporting
controls. We will need te allocate additional resources to enbance the quality of our staff and 1o carry out the remediation of these material
weaknesses. Based upon our current assessment, we expect to complete the remediation of these material weaknesses during 2008 with an estimated
additional cost of approximately $3.4 million. The Company cannot indicate with certainty that the material weaknesses will be remediated or what
additional costs may be incurred, The Company needs to initiate additional controls and test the effectiveness of controls prior to concluding controls
are effective. As a condition to state Public Utility Commissions’ approval of the RWE Divestiture, we agreed that costs incurred in connection with
our initial internal control and remediation initiatives would not be recoverable in rates charged to owr customers. Elements of our remediation
activities can only be accomplished over time, and our initiatives provide no assurances that they will result in an effective internal control
environment. Our board of directors, in coordination with our audit committee, will continnally assess the progress and sufficiency of these initiatives
and make adjustments, as necessary,

The Company believes the additional control procedures as designed, when implemented, will fully remediate the above material weaknesses.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except as described above, there were no changes in internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2008, that have
materially affected, o1 are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,
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PART IL. OTHER INFORMATION
FTEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Previously reported uader “Business — Legal Proceedings” in the Company’s Form 424(b)(4) prospectus filed April 24, 2008,

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from risk factors previously disclosed in “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Form 424(b}4) prospectus filed
April 24, 2008, other than as described below,

We have recorded a significant amount of goodwill, and we may never realize the full value of our intangible assets causing us to record
impairments that may negatively affect our results of operations.

Our total assets include substantial goodwill. At March 31, 2008, cur goodwill totaled $1,707.0 miflion. The goodwill is associated primarily with
the acquisition of American Water by an affiliate of RWE in 2003 and the acquisition of E'Town Corporation in 2001, Goodwill represents the excess of
the purchase price the purchaser paid over the fair value of the net tangible and intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is recorded at fair vaiue on the
date of an acquisition and, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” or
SFAS No. 142, is reviewed annually or more frequently if changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Annual
impairment reviews are performed in the fourth quarter and interim reviews are performed when management determines that a triggering event has
occurred. We have been required to reflect, as required by SFAS Ne. 142 and other applicable accousting rules, a non-cash charge to operaling results
for goodwill impairment in the amounts of $396.3 mifion, $227.8 miltion, and $508.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. These amounts include impairments relating to discontinued operations. Also, for the three months ended March 31, 2008 we recorded a
goodwill impairment in the amount of $750.0 million.

Our annual goodwill impairment test is conducted during the fourth quarter. We have processes to monitor for interim triggering events. During
the third quarter of 2007 management determined that it was appropiiate to update its valuation analysis as a result of our debt being placed on review
for a possible downgrade and the anticipated sale of a portion of the Company in the IPO. As a result of that update, we recorded an impairment
charge to goodwill of our Regulated Businesses in the amount of $243.3 million in the thicd quarter of 2007. That decline in the vahue of our goodwitl
was primarily due 1o a slightly lower long-term earnings forecast caused by updated customer demand and usage expectations and expectations for
timing of capital expenditures and rate recovery.

When we completed our annual goodwill impairment test for 2007 we determined that an impairment had occurred based upon new information
regarding our market value. We incorporated this indicated market value into our valuation metkodology and, based on those results, recorded an
addisional goodwill impairment charge to the Regulated Businesses reporting unit in the amount of $266.0 milkion during the fourth quarter of 2007.

In April of 2008, we determined that it was probable based in large part on the initial public offering price of our common stock of $21.50, that the
cutrent carrying value of our goodwill which the Company recorded as a result of the 2003 acquisition of American Water by RWE and acquisition of
E'Town Cosporation in 2001 was impaired. At the time the Company's initial public offering price of $21.50 was established, we were unable 1o
determine if there was any goodwill impairment or to provide a reliable estimate of the amount of goodwill impairment, if any. In light of the initiat
public offering price and trading levels in our stock since the date of the IPO, we performed an interim impairment test and on May 9, 2008, we
concluded that the cwrrent carrying value of our goodwill was impaired as a result of the current market price and trading levels of our common stock.
We believe the offering price was indicative of the value of the Company at March 31, 2008 and accordingly, based on those factors, recorded an
impairment charge to goodwill related to owr Regulated Businesses in the amount of $750.0 million in owr financial staterments as of and for the fiscal
quatter ended March 31, 2008, The impairment charge was primarity due to the market price of ouzr common stock {both the initial public offering price
and the price during subsequent trading) being less
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than what was anticipated during our 2007 annual test. Also contributing to the impairment was a decline in the fair value of our debt (due to increased
market interest rates).

We may be required to recognize additional impairments in the future, depending on, among other factors, a decline over a period of time in
valuation multiples of comparable water uiitities, a decline over a period of time of the Company’s stock price or the lack of appreciation of the
Company’s stock price to a level consistent with peer companices or increases in equity value. A decline in the forecasted results in cur business plan,
such as changes in rate case results or capital investment budgets or changes in our interest rates, may also result in an incremental impairment
charge. Further recogaition of impairments of a significant portion of goodwill would negatively affect our results of operations and total
capitalization, the effect of which could be material and could make it more difficult for us to secure financing on attractive terms and maintain
compliance with our debt covenants,

1TEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A YOTE OF SECURITY BOLDERS
None

ITEM 5, OTHER INFORMATION

None

ITEM 6, EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Descripiion
31 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of American Water Works Company, Inc. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to American
Water Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, File No. 333-145725, filed March 6, 2008).
32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of American Water Works Company, Inc, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to American Water
Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, File No. 333-145725, filed March 26, 2008).
19.1 Employment Agreement between Donald L. Correll and American Water Works Company, Inc., dated February 15, 2008 (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to American Water Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form $-1, File No, 333-145725, filed
March 6, 2008).

10.2 Employment Agrecment between Ellen C. Woif and American Water Works Company, Inc., dated February 15, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to American Water Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1, File No. 333-145725, filed
March 6, 2008).
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10.3

*31.1
*31.2
*32.1
*32.2

HY

2008 American Water Senior Management Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to American Water Works
Company, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, File No. 333-145725, filed April 15, 2008),

Cestification of Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Certification of Elien C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Certification of Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Excoutive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

* filed herewith.
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Signatures

Purguant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

American Water Works Company, Inc.

(Registrant)
May 14, 2007 /s/ Borald L. Correll
{Date) Ponzld L. Correll

President and Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

May 14, 2007 fs/ Elien C. Wolf

(Date) Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
£ | Restated Certificate of Incorporation of American Water Works Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Bxhibit 3.1 to American Water
Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, File No. 333-145725, fited March 6, 2008).
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of American Water Works Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to American Water
Works Company, Inc.’s Registzation Statement on Form S-1, File No. 333-145725, filed March 26, 2008),
10,1 Employment Agreement between Donald L. Correll and American Water Works Company, Inc., dated February 15, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to American Water Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form $-1, File No, 333-145725, filed March 6,
2008),
i0.2 Employment Agreement between Eller C. Wolf and American Water Works Company, Ine., dated February 15, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to American Water Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, File No. 333-145725, filed March 6,
2008).
103 2008 American Water Senior Management Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to American Water Works
Company, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form $-1, File No. 333-145725, filed April 15, 2008).
31 Certificatios of Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
¥312 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
*32.1 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
*32.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

*  filed herewith,
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT O
1934 | .

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008

OR

L1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file; number 001-34028

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

(Exact name of regisicant as specified in its charter}

Delaware 51-0063090
{State or other jurisdiction of {LR.S. Employer
incorporation or erganization) identification No.)
1025 Laurel Ozk Road, Voorhees, NJ 08043
{Address of principal executive offfces) (Zip Code}
(856) 346-8200

(Registrant’s telepk Jirg area code}

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months {or for such shorter peried that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subjedt to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” Hccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer 13 Accelesated filer 0

Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting comparny [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 125-2 of the BExchange Act.). J Yes No
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Indicate the sumber of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Class Outstanding at Aupnst 12, 2008
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share - ) 159,960,765 shares
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PART L FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

Unaudited)
Fune 30, December 34,
2008 2087

epreciation

tion of $75,275 at June 30 and $67,538 at December 31

L Unbilled ity revenil g
Non 1egulated trade and other ;ccewabies, net

430 354

628, 0’39
F010,282;
2 456,952

90,514
3,]85,757

26,682 < 512934 072

“Restricted fands
wil%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
{In thousands, except per share data)

{Unaudited)
June 30, Beceraber 31,

2008 2007

SRR A02,902 YT di5a2:046
4360 4,568

260 4674837

eemabiehféjféir’édéto‘ i i R e gy 24296

Total capltah?atxon 8,828,055 9,245,747

of $3,546 at Jung 30 an

181,765 -
774,480

Total carre.m liabilities 7
Regulatory and other longz:ter

655,575
638,018
35,361

- 192,650
| 280,722
(158,552
123,871
(52095,449

TOTAL CAPITALIZA TION AND LIABILITIES $ 12,526,682 $12,934,072

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Ine. and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data}

‘Fhree Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
Ofiérs ven : : S B O 89,31

Opez adin expenses

407,243 802,469
~ 224,808

#5574 (142,970)
3,169

CRS12
(2,397}

23783

T (138.016)
36,792

(1) amounts may not add due to round up.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Censolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2008 2007

132,764

13123
15811
15821
B13)
16,554
) @)
G 18)

, (45 435)
'-:-;:-f;'(31 088)
9

141275 136281

(425 90) (304557

S (248) eim
798 15,200
0,660

aii:qmred b adchan

Non-cash fimncmg actmly . o )
d ¥ o S 8 12,5788 85838
‘Capital conmbutmn 5 - $ 100,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Common Stockhelders’ Equity
(Unandited)

¢{In thousands, except per share data}

Accamulated

Commen Stock, 5.0 Par Value: Other Common

. J00000 Slres Authorized  puigin (Acoumulted  Comprehensive Freasury Stock Stockholders

Silams Par Value . Capital Deficit) m:omc (Loss) Shares At Cost Egmix )
1 160,000 00 $5,637,947: - SCLOTOLIR 8 3830 4 46

“R(1933) - 514,102,902

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Ini thousands, except per share data)

" WNote 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet of American Water Works Company, Ync. and Subsidiary Companies (the “Company”) at June 30,
2008, the consolidated statements of operations for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the consotidated sfatements of
cash flows for the six menths ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated statement of changes in common stockholders’ equity for the six
months ended June 30, 2008, are vnaudited, but reflect all adjustments, which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to present fairly the
consolidated financial position, the consolidated changes in common stockholders’ equity, the consolidated results of operations, and the
consolidated cash flows for the periods presented. All adjustments are of a normal, recurring nature, except as otherwise disclosed, Because they
cover interim pericds, the unaudited conselidated financial statements and related notes 1o the consclidated financial statements do not include a#
disclosures and notes normally provided in annual financial statements and, therefore, shoutd be read in conjunction with the Company's
consolidated financial statements and related notes included in the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended
Drecember 31, 2007, The results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the resulis that may be expected for the vear, due
primarily to the seasonality of the Company’s operations,

Note 2: New Acconnting Pronouncements

In February 2067, the Fimancial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”7 (“SFAS 159”). This standard permits
entities 1o choose Lo measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by
providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without
having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 is effective for years beginning January 1, 2008, The Company has not elected to
exercise the fair value irrevocable option. Therefore, the adoption of SFAS 159 did not have an impact on the Company's results of operations,
financial position or cash fows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157
establishes 4 common definition for fair value to be applied to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles guidance requiring use of fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair valve measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issued
FASB Staff Position SFAS 157-2 which allows a one-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities (such as
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and goodwill) that are requized to be measured at fair value on a periodic basis (such as at acquisition
or impairment}. The Company elected to use this deferral option and accordingly, only partiaily adopted SFAS 157 on January |, 2008. SFAS 157 will
be adopied for the Company's nonfinancial assets and Habilities valued on a non-recurring basis on January 1, 2009,

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 for financial assets and Habilities, and nonfinancial assets and liabilities
with recurring measurements. The Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the period were cash and cash
equivalents, restricted funds and short-term debt, These assets and labilities were measured at fajir value on the balance sheet date using guoted
prices in active matkets (Jevel ] inputs, as defined by SFAS 157). The adoption of SFAS 157 for the Company’s financial assets and liabilities did not
have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows. The Company will be required to measuze the assets of
its defined benefit pension and other post retirement welfare plans pursuant to SFAS 157 at the next measurement date, which will be December 31,
2008.

Note 3: Goodwill

In April of 2008, as a result of the pricing of the Company’s initial public offering (“IPO”} (See Note 4), management determined that an interim
triggering event occurred and that it was appropriate to update its valuation analysis before the next scheduled annual test.

Based on this assessment, the Company performed an interim impairment test as of March 31, 2008, The Company concluded that the carrying
value of its goodwill was impaired as a result of the current market price and trading levels of its common stock. The Company believes the offering
price was indicative of the value of the Company at March 31, 2008 and accordingly, based on those factors, the Company recorded an impairment
charge to goodwill related to its Regulated Businesses of $750,000. The Company has reflected the tax effect of the impairment as 2 discrete item for
purposes of calculating its tax provision as the charge is considered an infrequently ocourring or unusual item. The impairment charge was primarily
due to the market price of the Company’s common
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stock (both the IPO price and the market price during subsequent trading) being less than what was anticipated during the Company's 2007 annual
test, Also contributing to the impairment was a decline in the fair value of the Company’s debt (due to increased market interest rates).

In developing the estimated fair value of the Company’s reporting units, significant judgment was required. The Company determined the
estimated fair value of the reporting units utilizing a methodology consistent with its 2007 annual test. Whenever possible, market information
including the initial public offering price of the Company’s commeon stock and subsequent trading price was used to update the Company’s
assumptions. The methodology utilized a combination of the trading price of the Company's common stock, an estimated control premium, trading
price market multiples of peer companies (regulated water utilities) and the Company’s discounted cash flow anatysis based on the Company's five-
year business plan, each of which has differing weights. The majority of the weighting is applied to the traded price as this represents the market
objective evidence of fair value with minimal weight applied to the discounted cash flow analysis.

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s goodwiH by reporting unit:

Bala 0 0,682 182,456,952
Impairme {750,000)

@277 = D
$1,576,993 § 125682  $1706675

Balance at June 30, 2008

The Company may be required to recogrize additional impairments in the future, depending on, among other factors, a decline over a period of
time in the valuation multiples of comparable water utilities, a decline over a period of time of the Company’s stock price or the lack of appreciation of
the Company's stock price to a level consistent with peer companies or increases in equity value. A decline in the Forecasted results in the Company's
business plan, such as changes in rate case results or capital investment budgets or changes in the Company's interest rates may aiso result in an
incrernental impairment charge.

As a result of the impairment RWE transTerred $245,000 to the Company on May 13, 2008. This cash was used to reduce debt.

Note 4: Stockholders” Equity
Comzon Stock

On April 28, 2008, RWE Aqua Holdings GmbH completed the partial divestiture of its investment in the Company in an initial public offering
(“IPO”) through the sale of 58,000 shares of common stock at an IPO price of $21.50. The selling stockholder granted the underwriters a 3¢ day option
to purchase up to an additional §,700 shares of the Company’s stock at a price of $21.50. On May 27, 2008 the Company announced the underwriters’
partial exercise of their over-allotment option to purchase 5,173 shares to cover over allotments. The Company did not receive any proceeds from the
sate of shiares. Prior 1o the IPO, the Comipany was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of RWE. Afier the IPO, and exercise of the underwriters’ over-
allotment eption, RWE owns approximately 60% of the Company’s common shares,

Effective the first quarter of 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors’ authorized 50,000 shares of par value $0.01 per share preferred stock. As of
June 30, 2008 there are no shares outstanding,

Stock Based Compensation

On April 22, 2008, a subsidiary of RWE contributed 90 shares of the Company's common stock to the Company and the Company granted 90
restricted stock awards, 269 restricted stock units and 2,078 stock options, The awards were issued to the Company’s employees and certain non-
employee directors under its 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “2007 Pian™). The total aggregate number of shares of common stock that
may be issued under the 2007 Plan is 6,000. The restricted stock units and the stock options were awarded in two grants with “Grant 1" vesting on
January 1, 2010 and “Grant 2” vesting January 1, 2011, Shares issued under the Plan may be authorized but unissued shares of Company stock or
reacquired shares of Company stock, including shares purchased by the Company on the open market for purposes of the 2007 Plan.

9
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The following table presents stock-based compensation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2008 2067 2608 2007

Resmicted'stoc
Stock- based compensation in operat:on and mamtenance ex pense

After tax stoak bascdcompensatlonexpe:}se $ 1217 % 104 3 1410 $ 207

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment” {“SFAS 123(RY") the cost of services
received from employees in exchange for the issuance of stock options and restricted stock awards is required to be measured based on the grant date
fair value of the awards issued, The value of stock options and restricted stock awards at the date of the grant is amortized through expense over the
requisite service period using the straight-line method, adjusted for retirement eligible participants. All awards granted i 2008 are classified as equity.

In addition to the requisite service period, 1,470 stock options and 190 restricted stock units are subject to performance-based vesting
requirements. The performance conditions are based on the achievement of 120% of net income targets in 2008 and 2009. These stock option and
restricted stock awards will vest proportionately depending upon the level of achievement with 1,470 stock options and 190 restricted stock units
being the maximam,

The Company recognizes expense for the portion of the awards where achievement is considered probable. As of June 30, 2008, 630 stock option
and 82 restricted stock awards are not considered probable to meet performance conditions,

The Company stratified its grant pepuiations and used historic employee turnover rates and general market data to estimate employee
forfeitures.

Stock Options

Non-qualified stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock were granted under the 2007 Plan. The exercise price of the
stock options is equal to the fair market value of the underlying stock on the date of option grant. Stock options granted become exercisable upon a
specified vesting date, The requisite service period for options granted is three years. All stock options expire seven years from the effective date of
the grant. The remaining vesting period of the stock options outstanding as of June 30, 2008 ranged from 1.5 years to 2.5 years. The fair value of each
option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

The following table presents the assumptions used in the pricing mode! for grants and resulting grant date fair value of stock options granted,

Grant Grant

The dividend yield is based on the Company's expected dividend payments and the IPO stock price. Expected volatility is based on historic
volatilities of traded common stock of peer companies {regulated water companies) over the expected term of the stock options. The risk-free interest
rate is the market yield on U.S. Treasury strips with maturitics similar to the expected term of the stock options. The expected term represents the
period of time the stock options are expected to be cutstanding and is based on the “simplified method” as permitted by Staff Accounting Bulletin
{“SAB”) No. 107 and SAB No. 110.

The following table presents information with respect to stock option activity as of June 30, 2008.

10
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Outstanding Txercise Price
Sk

There are zero options awards vested and no option awards have been exercised as of June 30, 2008,

As of June 30, 2008, $4,990 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to the nonvested stock options is expected to be recognized over
the remaining average weighted-average period of 2.1 years.

Restricted Stock Units
" The Company granted restricted stock units under the 2007 Plan. The requisite service period for restricted stock units is three years.

The following table presents information with respect to restricted stock unit activity as of June 30, 2008.

Grant Date
Outsianding Fair Value
Shar i

As these restricted stock units would have paid-out in cash if the IPO was not completed, the Company reclassified the restricted stock units
from liabitity-classified awards to equity-classified awards as of the completion of the IPQO. As of June 30, 2008, $2,641 of total unrecognized
compensation costs related to the nonvested restricted stock units is expected to be recognized over the remaining weighted-average peried of 2.2
years.

Restricted Stock
The Company granted restricted stock under the 2007 Plan. The requisite service period for the restricted stock is three months.
The following table presents information with respect to restricted stock activity at June 30, 2008,
Grant Rale
Ouistanding Fair Yalue
Shares - {pershare}
$ 2150

o0 g 2150

Nonvested at Toi
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As of June 30, 2008, $428 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to the nonvested restricted stock units is expected to be recoghized
in the third guarter of 2008,

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s Nonqualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP™) was effective as of July 1, 2008, Under the ESPP, employees can use
payroll deductions to acquire Company stock at a discount, The Company’s ESPP s considered compensatory under SFAS 123(R). No compensation
costs were recognized for the three or six months ended June 30, 2008.

Note 5: Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The componests of comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Theee Moenths Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
2008

G $(686,986)

2T

it benéf_itcost_;___ )
 Actatialloss
Foreign cutrency trapslation adinsime;
Total comprehensive income (foss)

${6§7, 136)
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Note 6: Long-Term Debt

The Company primarily incuss long-term debt to fund capital expenditures at the regulated subsidiaries. The components of long-term debt are as
follows;

Maturity June 36, December 31,
Rate _.Date 2008 pilird

03018203278 86860 § 86,850
01122037, R AR

it funded debt.

00%6.88%

b 2008-2025: 45,473

: 2013-2036 24,644

Notés payable and otheric). 5 3447
Long-term debt 4, 724 845
Total long-term debt $ 4.801,127 $ 4 ?95 588

(@}  Tax-exempt bonds which are remarketed as money market bonds for periods up to 270 days (1 to 119 days during 2008 and 1 to 127 days during
2007). These bonds may be converted to other short-term variable-rate structures,  fixed-rate structure or subject to redemption.

(b) 524,860 of the total represents tax-exempt bonds which are sold at auction rates that are reset every 7 to 35 days. These bonds may be converted
to other shorl-term variabie-rate structures, a fixed-rate structure or subject to redemption. The remaining $8,560 represents tax-exempt bonds
remarketed as money market bonds. See (a) above.

(c)  Includes capital lease obligations of $1,909 and $1,982 at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 respectively.

(d) Includes fair value adjustments from acquisition purchase accounting,

The following long-term debt was issued in 2008:

Fterest
Rate . Maturity Amount

; 6,28% - 2008 $116,000
) Senior notes 6.55% 2023 90,000
hersubsidi; : ] State findncing authorify Toans And other - T L00% T 2024 S O
Total Issuances $201,546

i3
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The following long-term debt and preferred stock with mandatory redemption requirements were repurchased or retived through optional redemption or
payment at maturity during 2008:

Interest
gﬁmwxg Type Rate Maturity Amounl

enior notesslo; L SRR 107
State financing authorny loans and oti:er 0.00%-9.87% 2008 2034 18,721

W172019 6
T

Gains from early extinguishment of debt included in Interest, net amounted to $0 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and $1,101 and
$8,164 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively.

Interest, net includes interest income of approximately 32,961 and $4,619 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively and $3,271 and
$5,093 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively.

Note 7: Short-Term Debt
The components of short-term debt are as follows:

June 3, Drecember 3i,
S s 27
Commercial paper et of $165 and $6801 205,835 8 1690
Bock overdraft

i short-terimdebt = _ : i
T otai short-term debt $243.418 $ 220,514

Note 8: Incomte Taxes

‘The Company’s estimated annuai effective tax rate for 2008 is 39.5% compared to 39.6% for 2007, excluding various discrete items. The Company’s
actual effective tax rate for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was 39.9% and 39.5%, respectively. The Company’s actual effective rate for
the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 of (3.9%) and 39.6%, respectively, reflects the tax effect of the goodwill impairment as a discrete item as
the Company considers this charge an infrequently occurring ot unusuzl event,

i4
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Note 9: Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit costs:

Three Months Ended Sk Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
. S/ S . S . |

ost _
1 benetit chargs BRI i
fit cost 3 8,22} $ 8060 $ 16,442 $ 16,213

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 3,

2407 2008 2007

e g
(5,751)

The Company contributed $46,000 fo its defined benefit pension plan in the first six months of 2008 and expects (o contribute $30,000 during the
balance of 2008. kn addition, the Company contributed $13,676 for the funding of its other postretirement plans in the first six months of 2008 and
expects to confribute $13,676 during the balance of 2008,

Note 10: Contingencies

OMI/Thames Water Stockton, Inc. (“"OMITW™) is a 50/50 joint venture between a subsidiary of the Company and Operations Management
International, Inc. (“OMI”). In February 2603, OMEFTW and the City of Stockton California (the “City™) entered into a 20-year service contract for
capital improvements and management services of water, wastewater and storm water utilities. By mutual agreement, OMITW and the City of
Stockton terminated the contract effective February 29, 2008 (the “Termination Date™). Upon termination, responsibility for management and operation
of the system was retwmed to the City. OMI/TW has agreed to provide a limited twelve month warranty relating to certain components of the facilities
that OMI/TW constructed (the “WW39 Plant”), committed to pay for certain employee transition costs and asswmed financial responsibility for
regulatory fines levied through the Termination Pate, if any, resulting from OMUTW's failure 1o comply with applicable National Poliutant Discharge
Elimination System permit requirements and/or incidents traced to design defects in the WW39 Plant. During 2007, the California State Water
Resources Control Board issued a notice of violation and a corresponding Settlement Communication related to a discharge into an adjacent river.
OMI/TW is responsible for any fines that may resuit from the Settlement Communication. Given the uncertainties related to resolving the remaining
issues described above, the Company has a loss reserve of approximately $4,600 at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007,

In 2007, the Company, through a subsidiary and an indirect 50% owned joint venture, completed construction of a water filaation plant for total
construction costs of approximately $32,000. Generally, as part of the contractual terms relating 1o construction contracts, the Company provides a
one-year construction warranty period. Ag of June 30, 2008, no claims have been made related to this warranty,

i5
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The Company is &lse routinely involved in condemnation proceedings and legal actions incident to the normal conduct of its business. At
June 30, 2008, the Company had accrued approximately $6,500 as probable losses and it is reasonably possible that additional losses could range up to
$30,000 for these matters. For certain matters, the Company is unable to estimate possible losses. The Company believes that damages or settlements,
if any, recovered by plaintiffs in such claims or actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s resulis of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

Note 11: Guarantees

The Company, through a subsidiary, holds a 50% interest in American Water-Pridesa LLC (“AW-Pridesa™, a Delaware limited liability company.
Acciona Agua Corporation (USA) holds the remaining 50% interest. AW-Pridesa has contracted with Tampa Bay Water (“Tampa Bay™), an interlocal
governmental agency of the State of Florida, to temedy and operate the Tampa Bay Seawater Desalination Plant. The Company entered into a
guarantee with Tampa Bay in November 2004 for the full and prompt performance of certain contractual obligations limited 1o a total aggregate liability
of $35,000. Contractual obligations call for certain construction activities and management services to be completed satisfactorily. AW-Pridesa took
over operation of the piant in January 2005, At December 31, 2007, the plant was fully operational and successiul performance testing of the
construction activities had been completed.

The Company provides financial guarantees or deposits 1o ensure performance of certain of its obligations on its non-regulated military
agreements and Operations & Maintenance agreements. These guarantees and deposits totaled $475,148 and $475,278 at June 30, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, respectively.

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, no accruals have been made related to these guarantees.,

Note 12: Environntental Matters

The Company’s water and wastewater operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign requirements relating 1o environmenta! protection and
as such the Company periodically becomes subject fo environmental claims in the normal course of business. Remediation costs that refate to an
existing condition caused by past operations are accrued when it is probable that these costs will be incurred and can be reasonably estimated,
Remediation costs accrued amounted to approximately $11,000 at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, At June 30, 2008, $10,100 of the reserve relates
to a conservation agreement entered into by a subsidiagy of the Company with the National Qceanic and Atmospheric Administration requiring the
Company to, among other provisions, implement certain measures to protect the steelhead trout and its habitat in the Carmel River watershed in the
state of California. The Company pursues recovery of incurred costs through all appropriate means, including regulatory recovery through customer
rates,

Note 13: Net Income {Loss) per Common Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share, income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, per conmon share and income (loss) from
continuing operations per common share are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Outstanding shares consist of
issued shares less treasury stock, Diluted net income (loss) per common share, income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, per common
share and income (loss) from continuing operations per common share are based on the weighted average number of common shares cutsianding
adjusted for the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents related to the restricted stock, restricted stock units and stock options. The dilutive effect
of restricted stock, restricted stock units and stock options is calculated ssing the treasury stock method and expected proceeds on vesting of the
restricted stock and restricted stock units and exercise of the stock options. The following table sets forth the components of basic and diluted
earnings per share and shows the effect of the common stock equivalents on the weighted average number of shares outstanding used in calculating
diluted earnings per share:

i6
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Three Menths Ended Six Months Ended
Jure 30, June 30,
2007 200

§ 45498 3 49985  (686986) § 52414
31
5 51,863

.$ 45,498  § 49,178  $(686,986)

Average common shares outstanding ~ diluted

159,976 160,000 159,966 160,000

Options to purchase 608 shares of the Company’s common stock were excluded from the calcutation of diluted common shares outstanding
because the calculated proceeds from the exercise of the options were greater than the average market price of the Company’s commeon stock during
the three month period ended June 30, 2008. There were also 190 restricted stock units and 1,470 stock options which were excluded from the
calculation of diluted common shares outstanding because certain perforimance conditions were not satisfied as of June 30, 2008. Al of the potentially
dilutive securities have been excluded for the six months ended June 30, 2008 because they are anti-dilutive. The Company had no potentially ditutive
shares for the three and six month periods ending June 30, 2007,

Note 14: Segment Information

The Company has two operating segments whick are also the Company’s two reportable segments referred to as the Regulated Businesses and Non-
regulated Businesses segments.

17
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The following table includes the Company's summarized segment information:

As of or for the Three Months Ended
June 30, 2008

67, 307

___446,71 ]

Clodmaso 20T L80a0ss " 12568
a3 L 32

As of or for the Three Months Ended
June 36, 2007

Non-
Regnlated ) repuiated) Other Consolidated
3

As of or for the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2008
Non-

repulated Other Consatidated
: 30078080 % 1,096,184

131,223
= 750,000
|

12, 526 682
5

As of or for the 8ix Months Ended

Jane 38, 2007
Non.
vegulated O!her Consolidated

9,814 1.627:279

3§1 _:132 764
4 75 no 802,460
40a1 : -
Total assets 31006 3 035 783 13,071,585
Capital €xpendmin Bk e e B04,557

(1} Management evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates resources based on several factors, of which the primary measure is
Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT does not represent cash flow for periods presented and should not be considered as an alternative to net income
as an indicator of the Company's operating performance or as an alternative to cash flows as a source of liquidity. Adjusted BBIT as defined by
the Company may not be comparable with Adjusted EBIT as defined by other companies.
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The following table reconciles Adjusted EBIT, as defined by the Company, to income (foss) from continuing operations before income taxes:

Tor the Three Montks Ended
June 30, 2008

Non- Total
regulnted Sepments

Repulated -
g 5138894

(ES 73!)
3,221

$ 75,664

For the Three Months Ended
June 24, 2007
Non-

Total
Seg__ ments

56

(1, 368) " {1 368}

Income from contlnumg opelatlons before income {axes § 82,633

For the Six Months Ended
June 30, 2008

Non- Totak
. Begulated regyialed ) Segrnems
5o P - Bg :

ons before )

For the Six Mowtls Ended

June 36, 2007
Non- Total
Regulated

eguEaled chmenhs

3Ly oRe (113)
. (2,587 _{2 587)
IS HIRRAE 1106
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Interest, net

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
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Note 15: Felton Water System Asset Sale

In May of 2008, the Company’s Califoraia subsidiary reached an agreement with the San Lorenzo Vaitey Water Disirict to selt ownership of its Felton
operating assets for total proceeds of $13,400, including $10,500 in cash and the assumption of $2,900 in debt, pending regulatory approval. The Felion
waler system serves approximately 1,330 customers.

Note 16: Subsequent Events

On July 28, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend payment of $0.20 per share payable on September 2, 2008 to all
shareholders of record as of August 15, 2008,
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ITEM 2, MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters within this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q include “forward-lookiag statements” within the meaning of Section 274 of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements included in this Form 10-Q,
other than statements of historical fact, may constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words
such as “may,” Yhould,” Will,” tould,” “stimates,” Predicts,” Potential,” tontinue,” Hnticipates,” Yelieves,” Plans,” Expects,” Puture” and
“intends” and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements may involve known and urknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause
the actual results or performance to differ from those projected in the forward-looking siatements. These statements are not guarantees of future
performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond our control and difficult to predict and could cause
actual results to differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute 10
differences in results and outcomes from those in our forward-looking statements include, withowt limitation, those items discussed in the “Risk
Factors” section or other sections in the Company’s Form 424(b)(4) prospectus filed April 24, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange Commission, as
well as in Item 1A of Part IF of this Quarterly Report. All forward-icoking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by such risk factors. We
undertake no obligation, other than as required by law, to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise.

GENERAL

American Water Works Compary, Inc. (herein referred to as “American Water” or the “Company™) is the largest investor-owned United States
water and wastewater utility company, as measured both by operating revenue and population served. Qur primary business involves the ownership
of water and wastewater utilities that provide water and wastewater services to residential, commercial and industrial customers. The businesses that
provide these services are generally subject to economic regulation by stale regulatory agencies in the states in which they operate. We report these
results in our Regulated Businesses segment, We also provide services that are ot subject t regulation by the state commissions, We report these
results in our Non-regulated Businesses segment. For farther description of our businesses see the “Business” section found in our Form 424(b)(4)
prospectus filed on April 24, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

You should read the foliowing discussion in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included cisewhere in
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in our Prospectus filed with the SEC on Aprii 24, 2008, with the information under the heading “Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ in our Form 424(b}(4) prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 24, 2008.

OVERVIEW

Financial Results American Water’s net income was $45.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to $49.2 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2007. Income from continning operations was $45.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008, compared to $50.0
million for the three months ended June 30, 2007. Diluted earnings per average common share were $0.28 for the three months ended June 30, 2008 as
compared to $0.31 for the three months ended Jung 30, 2007,

American Water’s net loss, which includes an impairment charge, net of tax of $738.5 million, was $687.0 million, for the six months ended
Junie 30, 2008 as compared to net income of $51.9 mitkion for the six months ended June 30, 2007. Loss from continuing operations was $687.0 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2008, compared to income from continuing operations of $52.4 million for the six months eaded June 30, 2007. Diluted
earnings (loss) per average common share were (34.29) for the six months ended Fune 30, 2008 as compared to $0.32 for the six months ended June 30,
2007, ‘

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2008 increased by $30.6 million compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to
increased revenues in our Regulated Businesses of $17.6 million which is fargely attributable to rate increases and revenues in our Non-regulated
Businesses which increased by $11.6 miilion due to increased Contract Operations Group and Homeowner Services Group revenues, partially offset by
decreased revenues in our Applied Water Group. Offsetting the increased revenues were $39.5 million higher operating expesses for the three months
ended June 30, 2008, The increase in operating expenses primarily resulted from increased operating expenses in our Regulated Businesses of $23.7
million for the three months ended June 3¢, 2008 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2007. This increase was
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mainly driven by higher employee related costs of $9.5 million due to $3.3 million of wages related to job reclassification of certain hourly employees
for services performed, stock based compensation expense of $2.1 miilion primarily attributable to the issvance of awards granted in connection with
the TPQ, an increase in the number of employees and wage rate increases and higher pension expense in 2008. In addition, the Regulated Businesses’
maintenance costs increased by $6.3 million primarily due to higher removal costs, increased tank painting expenses as well as higher costs of $0.9
million associated with a project in our Ilinois subsidiary to maintain valves, Operating expenses in our Non-regulated Businesses also increased by
$16.0 millior for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to three months ended June 30, 2007 as a result of higher operating and maintenance
expenses of $10.6 million which corresponds with their increased reveaues as well as 2 gain on sale of assets of $6.3 million recognized in 2007,

Other iterss affecting income from continuing operations for the three months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior
year inciude increased allowance for funds used dwing construction (“AFUDC") of $3.2 miliion atiributable to the increase in the construction work in
progress primarily in New Jersey and Missouri and lower income tax expense of $2.5 miilion.

Revenues for the six months eaded June 30, 2008 increased by $68.9 million compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to
increased revenues in our Regulated Businesses of $47.9 million which is largely atiributable fo rate increases and revenues in our Non-regulated
Businesses increased by $19.4 million due to increased Contract Operations and Homeowner Services Group revenues, partially offset by decreased
revenues in our Applied Water Group, Offsetting the increased revenues were $821.4 million higher operating expenses for the six months ended
June 30, 2008. These expenses primarily resulted from the impairment charge of $750.0 million which is discussed below, and increased expenses in our
Regulated Businesses of $5C.8 million in the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared o six months ended June 30, 2007, This increase was mainly
driven by higher employee related costs of $25.1 million due to $3.3 million of wages related to job reclassification of certain hourly employees for
services performed, stock based compensation expense of $2.3 million primarily atributable to the issuance of awards granted in connection with the
TPO, an increase in the number of employees and wage rate increases in 2008 and higher pension expense in 2008. In addition, the Regulated
Businesses’ maintenance costs increased by $10.8 million primarily due to higher removal costs, increased expenses of $3.6 million associated with a
praject in Illinots to maintain valves as well as increased tank painting expenses. Operating cxpenses in our Non-regulated Businesses also increased
by $22.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to six months ended June 30, 2007 as a result of higher operating and maintenance
expenses of $18.7 million which corresponds with their increased revenues as well as a gain on sale of assets of $6.1 million recognized in the six
months ended June 30, 2007.

Other items affecting income from continuing operations for the six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year
inclade lower interest expense of $2.9 million, as a result of the repayment of outstanding debt, increased AFUDC of $4.3 million attributable o the
increase in the construction work in progress primarily in New Jersey and Missouri and lower income tax expense of $8.3 million.

Regulatory Developments Duting the three months ended June 30, 2008, we received authorizations for additional annualized revenues from
general rate cases in California and Arizona amounting to $19.2 mitlion. California’s rates were retroactive to Jannasy 1, 2008, while Arizona’s rates were
effective in the second quarter of 2008. In the first six months of 2008 we received authorizations for additional annualized revenues from general rate
cases of $47.2 million, As of June 30, 2008, we were awaiting final orders for three general cases that were filed in 2007, requesting $39.6 million in total
additional annual revenues. In Juty 2008, the lllinois rate case filed ir 2007 for $32. 8 million was approved and received authorization to increase rates
which will provide additional annualized revenues of $24.9 million. In the first six months of 2008, we filed general rate cases in ten additional states
that would provide $271.0 million of additional revenues, if approved as filed. Of the rate cases filed in 2008, one state's rates were effective in 2008
with an annualized increase of $0.2 million and is included in the $47.2 million of anaualized revenue cutlined above. The remaining amount of $270.8
million remains under consideration by state public utility commissions at this time. There is no assurance that the filed amount, or any portion thereof,
of any requested increases will be granted.

Financing Activities During the six months ended June 30, 2008, we met our capital resource requiterments with internaily genesated cash as well
as funds from external sources primarily through commercial paper and the issuance of $200.0 million of private placement debt. In addition, as a result
of the impairment charge, RWE made a capital contribution in the second quarter of 2008 of $245.0 million. The cash was used to reduce short-term
borrowings.

Initial Public Offering Our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on April 23, 2008. On April 28, 2008, the Company
completed its initial public offering ("IPO”), RWE Aqua Holdings GmbH, the Company’s selling stockholder, sold 58.0 million shares of the Company’s
common stock at a price of $21.50 per share. The selling stockholder granted the underwriters 2 30 day option to purchase up to an additional
8.7 million shares of the Company’s
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stock at a price of $21.50. On May 27, 2008, the Company announced the underwriters’ partial exercise of their option to purchase 5.2 million shares to
cover over allotments. The Cempany did not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares. Prior o the IPO, the Company was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of RWE. After the JPO, and the exercise of the underwriters’ over-aliotment option, RWE owns approximately 60% of the Company’s
common shares.

On April 22, 2008, RWE contributed approximately 89.9 thousand shares of the Company’s common stock to the Company and the Company
granted approximately 89.9 thousand restricted stock awards, 269.3 thousand restricted stock units and 2.1 million stock options. The awards were
issued to the Company’s employees and certain non-employee directors under our 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan {the “2007 Plan™). The
total aggregate number of shares of common stock that may be issued under the 2007 Plan is 6.0 million. The restricted stock units and the stock
options were granted in two grants with “Grant 1" vesting on January 1, 2010 and “Grant 2” vesting on January 1, 2011,

Effective the first quaster of 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors’ authorized 50.0 million shares of par value $0.G1 per share preferred stock.
As of June 30, 2008 there are no shares outstanding,

Impairment Charge As previcusly disclosed in our free writing and final prospectuses, filed April 22, 2008 and April 24, 2008, respectively, the
Company determined that it was reasonably likely based in large part on an initial public offering price of our common stock of $21.50, that the current
carrying value of our goodwill which the Company recorded as a result of the 2003 acquisition of American Water by RWE and acquisition of E'Town
Corporation ir 2001, was impaired. At the time the Company's initial public offering price of $21.50 was established, we were unabie to determine if
there was any goodwill impairment or to provide a reliable estimate of the amount of any goodwill impairment, if any,

In light of the initial public offering price and trading levels in our stock since the date of PO, we performed an interim impairment test and on
May 9, 2008, concluded that the curtent carrying value of our goodwill was impaired as a result of the current market price at that time and trading
ievels of our common stock. Based on that assessment, we recorded an impatrment charge to goodwill related to our Regulated Businesses of $750.0
million in our financial statements as of and for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008. The impairment charge was primarily due to the market price of
our comumon stock (both the Initial public offering price and the price during subsequent trading) being less than what was anticipated during our 2007
annual test, Also coniributing to the impairment was a decline in the fair value of our debt {due to increased market inferest rates).

In developing owur estimated fair value of the Company’s reporting wnits, significant judgment was required. We determined the estimated fair
value of the reporting units utilizing a methodology consistent with its 2007 annual test, Whenever pessible, market information inciuding the initial
public offering price of the Company’s commoen stock and subsequent trading price was used to apdate our modeling assumptions, Qur methodelogy
utilized a combination of the trading price of the Company’s commos stock, an estimated congrol premium, trading price market multiples of peer
companies {regulated water utilities) and the Company’s discounted cash flow analysis based on our five-year business plan were used, each of which
has differing weights, The majority of the weighting is applied to the traded price as this represents the market objective evidence of fair value with
minimal weight applied to the discounted cash flow analysis.

We may be required to recognize additional impairments in the future, depending on, among other factors, a decling over a period of time in
valuation multiples of comparable water utilities, a decline over a period of time of the Company’s stock price or the fack of appreciation of the
Company’s stock price to 2 level consistent with peer companies or increases in equity value. A decline in the forecasted results in our business plan,
such as changes in rate case resuits or capital investment budgets or changes in our interest rates, may also resuit in an incremental impairment
charge.

As a result of the impairment and in accordance with certain regulatory commitments, RWE transferred $245.0 million to us on May 13, 2008.
RWE is not obligated to make any additional capital contributions,
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Other Matters In May 2008, ow California subsidiary reached an agreement with the San Lorenzo Valley Water District to sell ownership of our Felton
operating assets for consideration of $13.4 million. The district’s payment will consist of $10.5 million in cash and the acquirer’s assumption of $2.9
mitlion in debt, pending regulatory approval. The Felton water system serves approximately 1,330 customers.

On July 28, 2008, our Board of Directors declared a quarterty cash dividend payment of $0.20 per share payable on September 2, 2008 1o all
shareholders of record as of August 15, 2008.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended June 30, 2008 Compared To Three Months Ended June 30, 2007

For the three months ended Favorable
June 34, (Unfaveorable}

o hange

(31190

830
Gleneral: : (3,689)

Gain on sale of agsets (5,419
mpaitment charge IR

Total operating expenses, net 39.468)
Operatingincome (Jossy RS

Other income (deductions)
et
nece for other fu
nce for borrowed.
Amortization of debt expense
nds:Of subsidiarie

anstraction.

a1y

)

~@4.457)
Net income {loss) § 45498 $ 49,178 $ (3,680
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The following table ssmmarizes certain financial information for our Regulated and Non-regulated Businesses for the periods indicated (without
giving effect to inter-segment eliminations):

¥or the three months ended June 38,
2008 2007

Nen- Now-

n, Indork Ropnl * Y

) Teg B Teh!
Busknesses Buginesses Businesses Businegses
(In thousands}

155480
$ 10330

Opérating févenues 2 17 R 5 S5086

Adjusted EBIT! $134,213 $ 4,681 $140,938

W Adjusted BBIT is defined as earnings before interest and income taxes from continuing operations, Management evaluates the performance of
its segmenis and allocates resources based on several factors, of which the primary measure is Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT does not
represent cash flow for the periods presented and should not be considered as an alternative to net income as an indicator of the Company’s
operating performance or as an alternative to cash flows as a source of liquidity. Adjusted BBIT as defined by the Company may not be
comparable with Adjusted EBIT as defined by other companies.

Operating revenues Qur primary business involves the ownership of water and wastewater utilities that provide water and wastewater services
te residential, commercial and industrial customers. As such, our results of operations are significantly impacted by rates authorized by the state
regulatory commissions in the states in which we operate. The table below details the annualized revenues resulting from rate authorizations, including
infrastructure charges, which were granted and became effective in the second quarter of 2008,

Annualized Rate
Increnses Granted
(in millions)

alifor
Arizona

Operating revenues increased by $30.6 million, or 5.5% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o the three months ended June 30,
2007. Regulated Businesses’ revenues increased by $17.6 million, or 3.5% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the
prior year, The Non-regulated Businesses’ revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2008 increased by $11.6 million, or 20.8% compared to the
three months ended June 30, 2007.

The increase int revenues from the Regulated Businesses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the three months ended June 30,
2007 was primarily due to rate increases obtained through general rate cases in Pennsylvania, Missouri and Indiana (which were granted and became
effective in 2007) as well as other states totaling approximately $25.0 million and a $1 4 millon retroactive rate adjustment in California. These increases
were offset by a $12.6 million decrease in revenues related to reduced custorer consumption, mainly in owr Midwestern and Mid-Atlantic state
subsidiaries for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year.
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The following table sets forth the percentage of Regulated Businesses’ revenues and water sales volume by customer class:

For the three Its cided June 3),
Operating Revenues Water Sales Yehume
008 2007 aues

80%  S3.1%
A% '

Wastewater service

The feltowing discussion related to water services indicates the increase or decrease in the Regulated Businesses’ revenues and associated
water sales volumes in gallons by customer class.

Water Services—Water service operating revenues from residential customers for the three months eaded June 30, 2008 totaled $302.6 million, a
$7.9 million increase, or 2.7%, over the same period of 2007, mainly due to rate increases offset by a decrease in sales volume, Fhe voiume of water sold
to residential customers decreased by 2.1% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 1o 51.6 billion gallons, from 52.7 billion gallons for the same
pericd in 2007, largely as a result of wetter weather conditions in California and our Midwestern states.

Water service operating revenues from commercial water customers for the three months ended June 30, 2008 increased by $5.3 million, or 5.4%,
to $142.7 million mainty due to rate increases offset by decreases in sales volume compared to the same period in 2007, The volume of water sold to
commercial customers decreased by 1.4% for the three months ended June 30, 2008, 1o 21.4 billion gallons, from 21.7 biltion galfons for the three
months ended June 30, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from industrial customers totaled $26.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008, an increase of $2.7
million, or 11.3%, over those recorded for the same period of 2007 mainly due to rate increases offset by decreased sales volume. The volume of water
sold to industrial customets totaled 10.4 billion gallons for the three months ended June 30, 2008, a decrease of 2.8% from the 10.7 billion gallons for
the three months ended June 34, 2007,

Water service operating revenues from public and other customers increased $0.9 million, or 1.5%, for the three months ended June 30, 2008 to
$62.9 million from $62.0 mittion for the three months ended June 30, 2007 mainly due o rate increases. Revenues from municipal governments for fire
protection services and customers requiring special private fire service facilities totaled $26.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008, an
increase of $1.6 million over the same period of 2007, Revenues generated by sales to governmental entities and resale customers for the three months
ended June 30, 2008 totaled $36.7 million, a decrease of $0.6 million from the three months ended June 30, 2007,

Wastewater services—Our subsidiaries provide wastewater services in 11 states. Revenues from these services increased by $0.8 million, or
4.2%, 1o $19.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008, from $18.9 million for the same period of 2007. The increase was attributabie to
increases in rates charged to customers principally in Arizona, Hawaii, and New Jersey.

Nom-regulated Businesses’ operating revenues increased by $11.6 million, or 20.8% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared fo the
same period in 2007, The net increase was primarily attributable to higher revenues of $12.1 million in our Comtract Operations Group and $1.9 million in
our Homeowsner Services Group, partially offset by decreased revenues of $2.5 milkion in our Applied Water Group. The increase in Contract
Operations Group revenues was primarily due to incremental revenues associated with design and build contracts, as well 25 increased military project
reverues. The increase from our Homeowner Service Group represented expansion into new geographic markets. Applied Water Group revenues were
lower due to the decline in destgn and build activity resulting from the downturn in new home construction.

Operation and maintenance Operation and maintenance expense increased $31.2 miltion, or 10.4%, for the three months ended june 30, 2008
compared to the same period in the prior year,
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Operation and maintenance expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, by major expense category, were as follows:

. For the three months ended
June 36,

2008 2007
(In thousands) o
69,194
£19,237
ALEETNU 65 914
2l 26318
S04 0,134

10,662 10,088
330575, 7:§. 209385

¥ Certain 2007 amounts have been reclassified within operating expenses to conform to the 2008 presentation,

Production costs, including fuel and power, purchased water, chemicals and waste disposal increased by $2.8 miltion, or 4.0%, for the three
months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007. The increase was primariiy the result of increased costs in our Regulated Businesses
of $2.5 million. Fuel and power costs were higher by $0.7 mitlion which can be attributed fo increases in electricity prices. Chemical costs also increased
by $1.7 million primarily due to rising chemical costs and waste disposal costs were also higher by $0.5 million. These increases were partially offset by
lower purchased water costs of $0.4 million attributable to the decrease in customer usage.

Employee-related costs including wage and salary, group insurance, and pension expense increased $12.2 milion or 10.2%, for the three months
ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. These employee related costs represented 39.8% of operation and maintenance
expenses for both the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, The employee related cost increase of $9.5 million and $1.3 million in cur Regulated
and Non-regulated Businesses, respectively, was primarily the result of $3,3 milion of wages related 1o job reclassification of certain hourly employees
for services performed, stock based compensation expense of $2.1 milion mainly atiributable to awards granted in connection with the JPO, as well as
an increase in the number of employees and wage rate increases. In addition, our Regulated Businesses’ pension expense increased $3.0 million or
34.4% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year, Pension expense in excess of the amount contributed to
the pension plans is deferred by certain of our regulated subsidiaries pending future recovery in rates as contributions are made to the plans,
Although our pension expense in accordance with Statemnent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions” (“SFAS 87”) remained relatively unchanged, pension expense increased for the three months ended June 30, 2008 due to increased
contributions in certain of our regulated operating companies whose costs are recovered based on the Company’s funding policy which is the
minimum amount required by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA™), rather than the SFAS 87 expense. The increase in the
contributions is attributable to lower than expected retung on plan assets.

Operating supplies and services include the day-to-day expenses of office operation, legal and other professional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipment rental charges. For the three months ended June 30, 2008, these costs increased by $2.8 million or
4.4%, compared to the same period in 2007, Faclors contributing to this increase inclhude an overall increase in general office and travel costs of $1.8
million mainly due to infiatior, and higher fuel and other transportation costs of $2.4 million. Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease in
remediation costs, mainly consulting fees, in connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of $6.2 million or 68.1%, to $2.9 million for the three months
erded June 30, 2008 compared to $9.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007. Included in the three months ended June 30, 2008 are
divestiture and IPO related costs amounting to $3.1 million compared to divestiture related costs of $2.3 millioa for the three months ended June 30,
2007. Corresponding with the increase in revenues, the Non-regulated Businesses’ operating supplies and service expenses increased by $5.5 million
for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year, The increase is mainly attributable to additional expense in the
Contract Operations Group associated with several operating contracts (including a design, build and operate project in Fiflmore, California), pertially
offset by lower contracted services costs in the Applied Water Management Group due to the downturn in new home construction and profits of $1.5
milion as a result of the finalization and acceptance by the third party of a construction project.

Maintenance materials and services, which include emergency repairs as wel as costs for preventive maintenance, inceeased $10.9 million or by
41.4%, for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared fo the same period in the prior year. Regulated Businesses’ maintenance materials and
service costs increased by $6.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared (o the same period in the prior year due to costs of $0.8
million associated with a project in Iilinois to maintain valves, higher cost of removal expenses amounting to $3.9 million in certain of our operating
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companies and increased tank painting costs of $1.3 milkion in our New Jersey and Missouri operating companies, Our Non-regulated Businesses®
maintenance expense increased by $1.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to
higher frequency service kine protection contract usage by Homeowner Services Group customers as wel as increased costs in the Contract
Operations Group mainly attributable to costs associated with new military operations and maintenance projects.

Customer billing and accounting expenses increased by $2.8 milijon, or 30.7%, for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same
period in the prior year. The increase was the result of higher uncollectible accounts expense in our Regulated Businesses of $1.4 million and in our
Non-Regulated Businesses of $1.4 million.

Other operation and maintenance expenses include casualty and Hability insurance premiums and regulatory costs. These costs decreased by
$0.3 miltion, or 3.0%, in 2008 primarily due to decreased insurance costs of $0.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 due to more favorable
claims experience compared to the three months ended June 30, 2007, partially offset by increased regulatory expenses of $0.6 million.

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $0.8 million, or 1.2%, for the three months ended June 30,
2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to depreciation rate adjustments resulting from rate orders,
particularty in our Pennsylvania subsidiary offset by increased expense due to additional utility plant placed in service.

General taxes General taxes expense, which includes taxes for property, payrol, gross receipts, and other miscellaneous items, increased by $3.7
million, or 8.0%, in the three months ended Jure 30, 2008 compared 1o the three months ended June 30, 2007. This increase is primarily due to increased
gross receipts taxes of $2,0 million in New Jersey and increased property tax expense in Missouri of $0,7 million.

Gain on sale of assets Gain on sale of assets was $0.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to a gain of $6.2 miltion for
the three months ended June 30, 2007 due to non-recurring sales of assets no tonger used in our utility operations.

Other income (deductions) Interest, the primary component of our other income (deductions), decreased by $0.7 million, or 1.0%, for the three
months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. The decline is primarily due to the repayment of outstanding debt with the
2007 equity contributions from RWE that were made to meet the capital structure expectations of various state regulatory commissions. Also, AFUDC
increased by $3.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007 as a result of increased construction work in
progress. Other items contributing to the change include lower miscellancous income for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the three
months ended June 30, 2007 primarily as a result of a decrease in jobbing work of $1.0 million and an increase in the amortization of debt expense of
$0.3 million for the three monihs ended June 30, 2008 compared to same period in 2007 as a result of the debt restructusing.

Provision for income taxes Qur consolidated provision for income taxes decreased $2.5 mitlion or 7.6%, to $30.2 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2008. The effective tax rate was 39.9% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 39.5% for the three months ended June 30,
2007.

WNet inconte {loss). Net income decreased $3.7 million, to $45.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 from $49.2 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2007. The decrease is the result of the aforementioned changes,
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2008 Compared To Six Months Ended June 30, 2007

For the six months ended Favorable
June 30, (Unfavorahle)

Dollars in thensands)

S .‘?(75000@}

802,469 (821,415}

Operatui ncome (loss) CD2AB08. T I I52508)
e inc e (dedtkcnons)

H2.070) 5 D936

3,169 2,75%

BTy SRR T

STy L .(362)

1) (LE3) i

663 2,783 {2,120)

R38N I8 0le) L T

_{660,922) 86,702  (747714)

vision for i . S ‘ Dol L pgeA U aaaTR L T eI

Income (loss)fxom contmumg operations i o o _(686 986) 52414 {739,400

Income {loss) fron tritied opetationsingt of lax 1 R RN LEEE e s -1 R . {1

Net income (foss) 3 (636 86y § 51863 $ {73884

The following table summarizes certain financial information for our Regulated and Non-regulated Businesses for the periods indicated {without
giving effect {0 inter-segment eliminations):

For the six months ended June 30,
24418 27
Non- Non-
Regutated regulated Regulated regutated
Businesses Businesses Businesses Businesses
(in thousnnds} .

ot e . 128210 4927910 - 9108781
 Adjusted EBIT! $206,113  $ 9263 $200052  § 14,031

M adjusied BBIT is defined a5 earmnings before interest and income taxes from continuing operations, Management evaluales the performance of s segments and allocates resources based on several

factors, of which the primary measure is Adjusied EBIT, Adjusted EBIT does not reprosent ¢ash flow for the periods presented ard should not be considerad as an alternative to net income as an
indicater of the Company’ s operating petformance or as an allernative %o cash flows as a source of Houidity. Adjusted EBIT as defined by the Company may not be comparable with Adjusied
EBIT as defined by other companies.
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Operating revenues Our primary business involves the ownership of water and wastewater wtilities that services 1o residential, commercial and
industrial customers. As such, our results of operations are significantly impacted by rates authorized by the state regulatory commissions in the
states in which we operate. The table below details the annualized revenues resulting from rate authorizations, inchuding infrastructure charges, which
were granted and became effective in 2008,

Annualized Rate
Increases Grapted

3.9
27
I -

Operating revenues increased by $68.9 million, or 6.7% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o the six months ended June 30, 2007,
Reguiated Businesses' revenues increased by $47.9 million, or 5.2% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior
year. The Non-regulated Businesses’ revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2008 increased by $19.4 milkion, or 17.9% compared to the six months
ended June 35, 2007.

The increase in the Regulated Businesses’ revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o the six months ended June 30, 2007 was
primarily due to rate increases obtained through general rate cases in New Jersey, Penmsylvania, Missouri and Indiana (which were granted and
became effective in 2007) as well as other states totaling approximately $58.1 million and a $1.4 miilion retroactive rate adjustment in California made in
June 2008, This increase was offset by a $20.4 million decrease in revenses related to customer consumption, mainly in our states in the Western
region of the United States, for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior vear.

The following table sets forth the percentage of Regulated Businesses’ revenues and water sales volume by customer class:

For the six months ended June 24,
Operating Revenues Water Sales Volume
2608 2607 20Hi8 7

Wastewater service } _ ) _ 3.9% 4.0%

The following discussion related to water services indicates the increase or decrease in the Regulated Businesses’ revenues and water
associated sales volumes in gallons by customer class.

Water Services—Water service operating revenues from residential customers for the six months ended June 30, 2008 totaled $559.9 million, a
$24.5 million increase, or 4.6%, over the same period of 2007, mainky due to rate increases offset by a decrease in sales volume. The volume of water
sold to residential customers decreased by 2.2% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 10 96.9 billion gallons, from 99.1 billion gallons for the same
period in 2007, largely as a result of wetter weather conditions in California and the Midwestern region in the United States.
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Water service operating revenues from commercial water customers for the six months ended Jure 30, 2008 increased by $9.5 million, or 5.4%, to
$185.5 mitlion mainly due to rate increases offset by decreases in sales volume compared to the same period in 2007, The volume of water sold (o
commercial customers decreased by 2.4% for the six months ended June 30, 2008, to 40.3 billion gallons, from 41.3 billion gallons for the six months
ended June 30, 2007,

Water service operating revenues from indusirial customers totaled $50.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008, an increase of $4.2
million, or 9.1%, over those recorded for the same period of 2007 mainly due to rate increases offset by decreased sales volume. The volume of water
sold to industrial custorners totaled 20.3 billion gallons in the six months ended June 30, 2008, a decrease of 1.0% from the 20.5 billion gallons for the
six months ended June 30, 2007,

Water service operating revenues from public and other customers increased $4.7 million, or 4.1%, for the six months ended June 36, 2008 10
$120.7 million from $116.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 mainly due 1o rale increases. Revenues from municipal governments for fire
protection services and customers requiring special private fire service facilities totaled $51.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008, an
increase of $2.7 million over the same period of 2007. Revenues generated by sales to governmental entities and resale customers for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 totaled $68.9 million, an increase of $2.1 million from the six months ended June 30, 2007,

Wastewater services—Qur subsidiaries provide wastewater services in 11 states. Revenues from these services increased by $0.9 million, or
2.4%, to $38.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008, from $37.5 million for the same period of 2007, The increase was attributable (o increases
in sates charged to customers principally in Arizona, Hawaii, and New Jersey,

Non-regulated Businesses’ operating revenues increased by $19.4 million, or 17.9% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same
period in 2007. The net increase was primarily attributable to higher revenues of $20.9 milion in our Contract Operations Group and $3.9 million in our
Homeowner Services Group, partially offset by decreased revenues of $5.5 million in our Applied Water Group. The increase in Contract Operations
Group revenues was primarily atiributable to incremental revenues associated with design and build contracts, as well as increased military
construction and operations & maintenance project revenues. The increase from our Homeowner Service Group represented expansion into new
geographic markets, Applied Water Group revenues were lower due to the decline in design and build activity resulting from the downturn in new
home construction.

Operation and maintenance Operation and maintenance expense increased $59.8 million, or 10.3%, for the six months ended June 30, 2008
compared to the same period in the prior year,

Operation and maintenance expenses for the six months eaded June 30, 2608 and 2007, by major expense category, were as follows:

For the six months ended
June 3,
ZHIR ZHT*

130,938

228,356
L 12T669
57,171

Employeerelated costs
Operatingsupplies and ¢

* Certain 2007 amounts have been reclassified within operating expenses to conform to the 2008 presentation,

Production costs, including fuel and power, purchased water, chemicals and waste disposal increased by $5.9 million, or 4.5%, for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007, The increase was primarily the result of increased costs in our Regulated Businesses of $5.2
million. Fuel and power costs were higher by $2.3 million which can be attributed to increascs in electricity prices. Chemical costs also increased by
$2.3 million primarily due to rising chemical costs and waste disposal costs were also higher by $1.1 million. Offseiting these increases was lower
purchased water costs of $0.5 million.
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Employee-related costs including wage and salary, group insurance, and pension expense increased $29.9 million or 13.1%, for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year, These employee related costs represented 40.2% and 39,2% of operation and
maintenance expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The increase was due 1o higher wage and salary expenses of
$13.9 mitlion and $3.4 millicn in our Regulated and Non-regulated Businesses, respectively, primarily resulting from $3.3 million of wages related to job
reclassification of certain hourly employees for services performed, stock based compensation expense of $2.3 million mainly auributable to the
isseance of awards granted in comnection with the IPO and an increase in the number of employees and wage rate increases. In addition, our
Regulated Businesses’ pension expense increased by $6.3 million or 34.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared fo the same period in the
prior year. Pension expense in excess of the amount contributed to the pension plans is deferred by certain of our regulated subsidiaries pending
future recovery in rates as coniributions are made to the plans. Although our pension expense in accordance with SFAS 87 remained relatively
unchanged, pension expense increased for the six months ended June 30, 2008 due to increased contributions in certain of our regulated operating
companies, which costs are recovered based on the Company’s funding policy which is the minimum amount required by ERISA, rather than the SFAS
87 expense. The increase in the contributions is aftributable to lower than expected returns on plan assets,

Operating supplies and services include the day-to-day expenses of office operation, legal and other professional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipment rental charges. For the six months ended June 30, 2008, these costs increased by $8.6 million or 6.7%,
compared to the same period in 2007, Factors contributing to this increase include an overal! increase in general office costs and travel costs of $4.1
million mainky due to inflation, higher costs of $0.9 million in our Blinvis operating company due to Jegal proceedings associated with the IHinois valve
and hydrant project, and higher fuel and other transportation costs of $2.9 miltion. Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease in remediation
costs, mainty consulting fees in connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of $8.0 million or 47.3%, to $8.9 million for the six months erded June 30, 2008
compared to $16.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007, Included in the six months ended June 30, 2008 are divestiture and [PO related costs
amounting to $5.7 million compared to divestiture related costs of $4.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007. Corresponding with the increase
in revenues, the Non-regulated Businesses operating supplies and service expenses increased by $7.9 milfion for the six months ended June 30, 2008
compared to the same period in the prior year. The increase is mainly attributable to additional expense in the Contract Operations group associated
with several operating contracts (inchuding a design, build and operate project in Fillmore, California), partialy offset by lower contracted services
costs in the Applied Water Management Group due to the downturn in new home construction and profits of $1.5 million as a result of the finalization
and acceptance by a third party of a construction project.

Maintenance materials and services, which include emergency repairs as well as costs for preventive maintenance, increased $15.0 million or by
26.2%, for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. The Regulated Businesses’ maintenance materials and
service costs increased by $10.8 million in the first half of 2008 mainly due o costs of $2.8 million associated with a project in IlJinois to maintain
valves, higher cost of removal expenses of $5.4 million in certain of our operating companies and increased tank painting costs of $1.5 miflion in our
New Jersey and Missouri operating companies. These increases were offset by fower main break costs in 2008 due to winter weather conditions in the
firsthalf of 2007 primarily in our companies in the Midwest region of the United States. The Non-Regulated Businesses’ mmaintenance expenses
increased by $1.9 million as a result of higher frequency service line protection contract usage by Homeowner Services Group customers as well as
increased cost associated with the Contract Operations Group mainly atiributable to costs associated with new military operations and maintenance
projects.

Customer biliing and accounting expenses increased by $1,9 million or 11.2%, for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same
period in the prior year. The increase was the result of higher expense in our Non-Regulated Businesses of $2,2 million mainly due to increased
uncollectible expense on & number of contracts in our Applied Group as well as a credit adjustment recorded to the uncolfectible expense account in
2007 partially offset by lower uncollectible accounts expense of $0.2 mitlion in our regulated subsidiaries as a result of an increased focus on collection
of past due accounts.

Other operation and maintenance expenses include casualty and Hability insurance premiums and regulatory costs. These costs decreased by
$1.5 million or 7.1%, in 2008 primarily due to decreased insirance costs of $1.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 due to more favorable
claims experience compared to the six months ended June 30, 2007, partially offset by increased regulatory expenses of $0.2 mitkion.

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $1.5 million, or 1.2%, for the six months ended June 30,
2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to depreciation rate adjustments resulting from rate orders,
particularly in our Pennsylvania subsidiary partiaily offset by increased expense due t additional utility plant placed in service.
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General taxes General taxes expense, which includes taxes for property, payrell, gross receipts, and other misceflaneous items, increased by $7.9
millicn, of 8.4%, in the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the first six months of 2007. This increase is primarily due to increased gross
receipts taxes of $3.9 million in New Jersey and higher property taxes expense in Ohio of $1.6 million and Missouri of $0.7 miltion.

Gain on sale of assets Gain on sale of assets was $0.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to a gain of $6.1 million for the six
months ended Jupe 30, 2007 due to non-recutring sales of assets no longer used in our utility operations.

Impairment charge The impairment charge was $750.0 million for the six months ended fune 30, 2008. The 2008 impairment charge was primarily
due to the market price of the Company’s common stock (both the initial public offering price and the price during subsequent trading) being less than
what was anticipated during our 2007 annual test. Also contributing to the impairment was a decline in the fair value of the Company’s debt (due to
increased interest rates}. There was no impairment charge for the six months ended June 30, 2007,

Other income (deductions) Interest, the primary component of our other income (deductions), decreased by $2.9 million, or 2.1% for the six
months ended hune 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year, The decline is primarily due to the repayment of outstanding debt with the
2007 equity contributions from RWE which were made to meet the capital structure expectations of various state regulatory commissions. Also,
AFUDC increased by $4.3 milkion for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007 as a result of increased construction
work in progress. Other items contributing to the change include lower miscellaneous income for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the
six months ended June 30, 2007 primarily as a result of a decrease in jobbing work of $1.4 million and an increase in the amortization of debt expense of
$0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007as a result of the debt restructuring.

Provision for income taxes Qur consolidated provision for income taxes decreased $8.3 million or 24.1%, to $26.1 miilion for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 from $34.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2097, The Company recorded an effective tax rate for the first guarter 2008 of
{0.6%} which reflects the tax effect of the gocdwill impairment as a discrete item as we consider this charge an infrequently occurring or unusual event.

Net income (loss) Net income decreased $738.9 million, to a net loss of $687.0 mailion for the six months ended June 30, 2008 from net income of
$51.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007. The decrease is the result of the aforementioned changes.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Our business is capital intensive and requires considerable capital resources. A portion of these capital resources are provided by internally
generated cash flows from operations. When necessary we obtain funds from external sources in the capital markets and thzough bank borrowings.
Our access to external financing on reasonable terms depends on our credit ratings and current business conditions, including that of the water utility
industry in general as weil as conditions in the debt or equity capital markets. If these business and market conditions deteriozate (o the extent that we
no longer have access 1o the capital markets at reasonable terms, we have access to revolving credit facilities with aggregate bank commitments of
$210.0 million that we currently utilize to support owr commercial paper programs and 1o issue letters of credit. See the “Credit Facilities and Short-Term
Debt” section below for further discussion.

In addition, our regulated utility subsidiaries receive advances and contributions from customers, home builders and real estate developers to
fund construction necessary to extend service to new areas. Advances for construction are refundable for limited periods, which vary according to
state regulations, as new customers begin to receive service or other contractual obligations are fulfilled. Amounts which are no longer refundable are
reclassified to contributions in aid of construction. Utility plant funded by advances and contributions is excluded from rate base. Generally, we
depreciate contributed property and amortize contributions at the composite rate of the related property. Some of owr subsidiaries do not depreciate
contributed property, based on regulatory guidelines.

We use capital resources, including cash, to fund capital requirements, including construction expenditures, pay off maturing debt, pay
dividends, fund pension and postretirement welfare obligations and invest in new and existing businesses. We spend a significant amount of cash on
construction projects that have a long-term retusn on investment, Additicnally, we operate in rate-regulated environments in which the amount of new
investment recovery may be limited, and where such recovery takes place over an extended period of time, as our recovery is subject to regulatory lag,
As a result of these factors, our working capital, defined as cursent assets less current liabilities, was in a net deficit position at June 30, 2008.
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We expect to fund future maturities of long-term debt through a combination of external debt and cash flow from operations. We have no plans
to reduce debt significantly,

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities primarily result from the sale of water and wastewater services and due to the seasonality of operations are
weighted toward the third quarter of each fiscal year, Our future cash flows from operating activities will be affected by changes in the rate regulatory
environments; infrastructure investment; inflation; compliance with enviropmental, health and safety standards; production costs; customer growth;
declining per customer usage of water; and weather and seasonality. Cash flows from operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were
$141.3 mittion compared to $136.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007.

The foilowing table provides a summary of the major items affecting our cash flows from operating activities for the six months ended June 390,
2008 and 2007:

For the six months ended
June 36,

Net cash flows provided by opezations $ 141,275 $136,181

(1) Includes depreciation and amortization, impairment charges, removal costs net of salvage, provision for deferred income taxes, amortization of
deferred investment tax credits, provision for losses on utility accounts receivable, allowance for other funds used during construction, gain on
sale of assets, and other nen-cash items, net, less pension and postretivement healtheare contributions.

(2)  Changes in working capital include changes to accounts receivable and unbilled utility revenue, taxes receivable (including federal income),
other curent assets, accounts payable, taxes accrued (including federal income), interest accrued and other current liabilities.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were $427.6 million and $279 4 million, respectively.
Construction expendituzes increased $121.4 million to $426.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 from $304.6 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2007 as a result of increased investment in regulated utility plant projects. We anticipate spending approximately $950 milion on capital
investment in 2008,

Our construction program consists of both infrastructure renewal programs, where we replace infrastructure, as needed, and construction of
facilities to meet new customer growth, Also, an integral aspect of our strategy is to seek growth through tuck-ins and other acquisitions which are
complementary to our existing business and support the continued geographical diversification and growth of our operations. Generally, acquisitions
wili be funded initially with short-term debt and later refinanced with the proceeds from long-term debt or equity offerings.

Inchuded in the 2008 planned construction expenditures is approximately $26 million 1o construct a new water treatment plant on the Kentucky
River. On Aprif 25, 2008, the Kentucky Public Service Commission approved Kentucky American Water's application for a certificate of convenience
and necessity to construct 2 20.0 million gallon per day treatment plant on the Kentucky River and a 30.6 mile pipeline to meet Central Kentucky’s
water supply deficit. The Kentucky project is expected to be completed by 2010 with an estimated cost of between $162 million and $168 million.

On Decemnber 21, 2007, New Jersey-American Water, our subsidiary, signed an agreement with the City of Trenton, New Jersey to purchase the
assets of the city’s water system located in Ewing, Hamilton, Hopewell and Lawrence townships for $100.0 miliion. The agreement was approved by
the Trenton City Councif but requires approval by various regulatory agencies, including the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities. We can provide no
assurances that the agreement will be approved.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Owr financing activities include the issuance of long-term and short-term debt, primarily through our wholly-owned financing subsidiary,
American Water Capital Corp, (“AWCC”). In addition, we have received capital contributions from RWE and intend to issue equity in the future to
maintain an appropriate capital structure, subject to any restrictions in our registation rights agreement with RWE, In order to finance new
infrastructure, we received customer advances and contributions for construction (net of refunds) of $2.2 million and $15.7 milHon for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In connection with the RWE divestiture, we have made and will continue to make significant changes to
our capital structure through debt refinancing and equity offerings.

The foHowing long-term debt was tssued in the first six months of 2008:

Interest Amount
Rate Maturuv ~_{n Thousands)
— 18 <5 110,000
tes i 5 %0000
(b AR cing authbrity joans and other i - g U156
Total issuances $ 201,546

The following long-term debt and preferred stock with mandatory redemption requirements were repurchased or retired through optional redemption or
payment at maturity during the first six months of 2008:

Amount
Inderest Rate Materily  (In Thousands)

Total retirements & redemption e T T o ME R TS U 19,450

In the second quarter of 2008, the Company completed an offer to exchange $750,000 principal amount of its 6.085% Senior Notes due in 2017
and $750,000 principal amount of its 6.593% Senior Notes due in 2037 which are both registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Exchange
Notes™) for all $750,000 of its currently outstanding 6.085% Senior Notes due in 2017 and all $750,000 of its currently outstanding 6.593% Senior Notes
due in 2037, which have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Original Notes™). The Company did not receive any proceeds from
the exchange offer, nor did the Company’s debt level change as a result of the exchange offer. The terms of the Exchange Notes and the Original Notes
are substantially identical in all material respects.

From time to time and as market conditions warrant, we may engage in long-term debt retirements via tender offers, open market repurchases or
other viable alternatives to strengthen cur balance sheet,
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Dividends There were no dividend payments made for the six months ended June 30, 2008 or 2007. Our board of directors has adopted a dividend
policy, effective upon the consummation of the 1PO, to distribute to our stockholders a portion of our net cash provided by operating activities as
regular guarterly dividends, rather than retaining that cash for other purposes. Qur policy will be to distribute 50% to 70% of our annual net income,
adjusted for certain non-cash items.

On July 28, 2008, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend payment of $0.20 per share payable on September 2, 2008 to all
shareholders of record as of August 15, 2008.

Contributions from RWE As a result of the impairmest charges recorded for the six months ended June 30, 2008, RWE transferred $245.0 million on
May 13, 2008. This cash was used to reduce short-term debt. Contributions from RWE were $651.1 miilion for the six months ended June 30, 2007,

Credit Facilities and Short Term Debt
The components of short-term debt were as follows:

June 30,2068

housands

H ercial aper net
Boek overdraft
Oft term debt

Total short-term debt ' Y§ o348

Our access to external financing on reasonable terms depends on our credit ratings and current business conditions, including that of the water
utility industry in general as well as conditions in the debt ot equity capital markets. If these business and market conditions deteriorate to the extent
that we no fonger have access to the capital markets at reasonable terms, we have access to revolving credit facilities with aggregate bank
commitments of $810.0 million that we currently utilize to support our commergial paper programs and to issue letters of credit,

AWCC has entered into a one~year $10.0 million committed revolving fine of credit with PNC Bank, N.A. This line of credit will terminate on
December 31, 2008 unless extended and is used primarily for short-term working capital needs. Interest rates on advances under this line of credit are
based on either the prime rate of PNC Bank, N.A. or the applicable LIBOR for the term selected plus 25 basis points. As of June 30, 2008, $9.3 million
was outstanding under this revolving line of credit,

On September 15, 2006, AWCC entered into ar $800.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility syndicated among a group of ten banks. This
revolving credit facility, which terminates on September 15, 2012 unless extended, is principally used o support the $700 milion commercial paper
program at AWCC and to provide up to $150.0 million in letters of credit. AWCC had no loans outstanding under the net $800.0 million unsecured
revolving credit facility as of June 36, 2008.

At June 30, 2008, AWCC had the following sub-limits and available capacity under the revelving credit facility and indicated amounts of
outstanding commercial paper.

Letier of Credit Available Outsianding
Subtimit Capacity Commercial Paper
(In limusands) . L ( !

“nds}

$ 150,000

Interest rates on advances under the revolving credit facility are based on either prime or LIBOR plus an applicable margin based upon our credit
ratings, as well as tolal outstanding amounts under the agreement at the time of the borrowing. The maximum LIBOR margin is 55 basis points.

The revolving credit facility requires us to maintain a ratio of consolidated debt to consolidated capitalization of pot more than 0,70 to 1.00. As of
June 30, 2008, our ratio was 0.55 and therefore we were in compliance with the ratio.

The average interest rate on commercial paper for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was approximately 4.2%.
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Debt Covenants

Our debt agreements contain financial and non-financial covenants. To the extent that we are not iz compliance, we or our subsidiaries may be
restricted in our ability to pay dividends, issue debt or access our revolving credit lines. We were in compliance with our reporting covenants as of
June 30, 2008.

Security Ratings

Our access to the capital markets, including the commercial paper market, and their respective financing costs in those markets depend on the
securities ratings of the entity that is accessing the capital markets. We primarily access the capital markets, including the commercial paper market,
through AWCC. However, we do issue debt at onr regulated subsidiaries, primarily in the form of tax exempt securities, to lower our overali cost of
debt. The following table shows the Company’s securities ratings as of June 30, 2008:

Moody’s Investors Standard & Poor's
Serviee R Ratings Service

apdi e BB B

P2 A2

Seeorities
Commercial paper

On June 19, 2008, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (S&P) downgraded to “BBB+"(stable outlook) from “A-" (negative outlook) the senior
unsecured issuer rating of AWCC. In addition, S&P assigned a “BBB+" corporate credit rating to American Water and affirmed AWCC’s “A-2" short-
term rating.

Moody’s rating outlook for both American Water and AWCC is stable.

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency, and each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating.

None of our borrowings are subject to default or prepayment as a result of a downgrading of securities although such a downgrading could
increase fees and interest charges under our credit facilities,

As part of the normal course of business, we routinely enter into contracts for the purchase and sale of water, energy, fuels and other services.
These contracts either contain express provisions or otherwise permit us and our counterparties to demand adequate assurance of future performance
when there are reasonable grounds for doing so. In accordance with the contracts and applicable contract law, if we are downgraded by a credit rating
agency, especially i such downgrade is to a level below investment grade, it is possible that a counterparty would attempt to rely on such a
downgrade as a basis for making 2 demand for adequate assurance of future performance. Depending on our net position with a counterparty, the
demand could be for the posting of collateral. In the absence of expressly agreed provisions that specify the cotlateral that must be provided, the
obligation to supply the coHateral requested will be a function of the facts and circumstances of the Company’s situation at the time of the demand. If
we can reasonably claim that we are willing and financially able to perform our obligations, it may be possible to successfully argue that no collateral
should be posted or that only an amount equal to twe or three months of future payments should be sufficient,

Current Credit Market Position

The liquidity crisis that began in 2007 as a result of the coliapse of the subprime mortgage market has adversely impacted global credit markets
and, if it continues, could increase our cost of capital or impair our ability to access the capital markets.

At this time, the Company does not believe recent market developments significantly impact its ability to obtain financing and expects o have
access to liquidity in the capital markets on favorable terms. In addition, the Company has acoess to unsecured revolving credit facilities, which are
not as dependent upon genexal market conditions, with aggregate bank commitments of $810 million, of which a portion is currently committed
primatily to backstop the Company’s commercial paper program and letters of credit.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk associated with changes in commodity prices, equity prices and interest rates. We use a combization of fixed-rate and
variable-rate debt to reduce interest rate exposure. As of June 30, 2008 a hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates associated with variable rate debt
would result in a $1.2 million decrease in our pre-tax eamings. Qur risks associated with price increase for chemicals, electricity and other comunodities
are reduced through contracts and the ability to recover price increases through rates. Non-performance by these commodity suppliess could have a
material impact on our results of operations, cash flows and financial position.
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Cur commen stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on April 23, 2008. The market price of our common stock may expesience
fluctuations, many of which are unrelated to our operating performance. In particular, our stock price may be affected by general market movements as
well as developments specifically related to the water and wastewater industry. These could include, among other things, interest rate movements,
quarterly variations or changes in financial estimates by securities analysts and governmental or regulatory actions. This volatility may make it
difficult for us to access the capital markets in the future through additional offerings of our common stock, regardless of our financial performance,
and such difficulty may preclude us from being able to take advantage of certain business opportunities or meet business oblgations,

Apgplication of Critical Accountin Hick d Estimat

Our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows are impacted by the methods, assumptions and estimates used in the application of
critical accounting policies. See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Qperations—Critical Accounting
Policles and Estimates,” in our Form 424(b)4) prospectus filed on April 24, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange Comenission for a discussion of the
critical accounting policies.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Part I, tem 1 Financial Statements (Unaudited}- Nore 2- New Accounting Pronouncements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for a
discussion of new accounting standards recently adopted or pending adoption.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE PISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to market risks in the normal course of business, including changes in interest rates and equity prices. For further discussion of
market risks see “Market Risk” in Part [, ltem 2 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disciosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that infermation required to be disclosed in the reports
filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended {“Exchange Act™), is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within
the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms and that such information is accumuiated and communicated to the Company’s
management including its principal executive and financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s management evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of
disciosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) of the Exchange Act. This evaluation was done under the supervision and with the
participation of management, including our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer.

Based on this evaluation and because of the material weaknesses described below, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have conciuded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were ot effective as of June 30, 2008, Notwithstanding these material
weaknesses, management conciuded that the financial statements included in this Form 10-Q for the three and six-months ended June 30, 2008 fairly
present in all material respects their financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A material weakness is a control deficiency or a combination of control deficiencies that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected.

Our management is respansible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. However, from 2003 w Apsil 28, 2008, we were an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of RWE and, as a privately owned company, were not required to maintain a system of internal control consistent with the reguirements of
the SEC and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, of to prepare owr own financial statements. As a public reporting company, we are required, among other things,
to maintain a system of effective internal

38

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



controd over financial reporting suitable to prepare our publicly reported financial statements in & timely and accurate manner, and also to evaluate and
report on such system of internal control. In particular, we are required to certify our compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the
year ended December 31, 2009, which will require us to perform system and process evaluation and testing of our internal control over financial

" reporting to aliow management and our independent registered public accounting fixm to report on the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting.

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2006, we and our independent registered public

accountants identified the following material weaknesses in our internal controf over financial reporting:

+  Inadequate internal staffing and skills;

+ Inadequate controls over financial reporting processes;

+ Inadequate controls over month-end closing processes, including account reconciliations;

+  Inadequate controls ever maintenance of contracts and agreements;

+ Inadequate contrels over segregation of duties and restriction of aceess to Key accounting applications; and

«  Inadequate controls over tax accounting and accruals.

Remediation of Material Weaknesses

Since joining the Company in 2006, Donald L. Correll, our Chief Executive Officer, and Ellen C. Wolf, our Chief Financial Officer, have assigned a
high priority to the evaluation and remediation of cur internal controls, and have taken numerous steps to remediate these matertal weaknesses and to
evaluate and strengthen our other internal controls over financial veporting. Some of the actions taken include:

+  Increasing our iaternal financial staff numbers and skill levels, and using external resources to supplement our internal staff when
necessary,;

»  Implementing detailed processes and procedures related to our period end financial closing processes, key accounting applications and
our financial reporting processes;

+  Implementing or enhancing systems used in the financial reporting processes and month-end close processes;

»  Conducting extensive training on existing and newly developed processes and procedures as well as explaining to employees Sarbanes-
Oxley Act requirements and the value of internal controls;

*  Enhancing our internai audit staff,
+  Hiring a director of internal control and a director of taxes;
*  Implementing a tracking mechanism and new policy and procedure for approval of ali contracts and agreements; and

*  Retaining a nationally recognized accounting and auditing firm o assist management in developing policies and procedures surrounding
internal controls over financial reporting, to evaluate and test these internal controls and to assist in the remediation of internal control
deficiencies.

With respect to the material weaknesses described above, we have initiated a process to clearly delineate our control weaknesses and
formulated a remediation plan. We believe that we have substantially completed remediating most of the identified material weaknesses; however, as
our testing procedures have not yet been completed, we can make no assurances as 10 the success of our remediation efforts. As of June 30, 2008, the
Company had incurred $57.8 million to remediate these material weaknesses and to document and test key financial reporting controls. We will need to
allocate additional resources to enhance the quality of our staff and to carry out the remediation of these material weaknesses. Based upon our current
assessment, we expect to complete the remediation of these material wealnesses during 2008 with an estimated additional cost of approximately $2.8
million. The Company cannot indicate with certainty that the material weaknesses will be remediated or what additional costs may be incurred. The
Company needs to fipalize its remediation efforts of the controls and complete the testing of the effectiveness of controls prior to concluding controls
are effective, As a condition to state Public Utility Commissions’ approval of the RWE divestiture, we agreed that costs incurred in connection with
our initial internal control and remediation initiatives would not be recoverable in rates charged to our customers. Elements of our remediation
activities can only be accomplished over time, and our initiatives provide no assurances that they will result in an effective internal control
environment. Our board of directors, in coordination with our audit commiitee, will continually assess the progress and sufficiency of these initiatives
and make adjustments, as necessary.
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The Company believes the additional control procedures as designed, when implemented, will fully remediate the above material weaknesses.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except as described above, there were no changes in internal control over financial reporting for the three or six-months ended June 30, 2008,
that have materially affected, or are reasonably Hkely to materially affect, the Company's internal control gver financial reporting.
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PART IL OTHER INFORMATION
1TEM 1, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
FPreviously reported under “Business - Legal Proceedings” in the Company’s Form 424(b)(4) prospectus filed April 24, 2008,

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Iz addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in the “Risk Factors” in the
Company’s Form 424(b}{4) prospectus filed Aprit 24, 2008, and our Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008 filed on May14, 2008,
which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Nene

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITHIS

None

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

In April 2008, in connecticn with the IPO, RWE Aqua Holdings GmbH, the Company’s sole stockholder at this time, approved the adoption of the
Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation by written consent.

IFEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
Nomne

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

10.1 Note Purchase Agreement, dated May 15, 2008, by and between AWCC and the Purchasers named therein for purchase of $110,000,000
6.25% Series (G Sentor Notes due 2018 and $90,000,000 6.55% Series H Senior Notes due 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 ©
American Water Works Company, Inc.’s current report on Form %-K, File No, 001-34028, filed May 15, 2008}

*311 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

*31.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
*32.1 Certification of Donald L. Corsell, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursnant to Section 906 of the Satbanes-Oxley Act

*32.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
* filed herewith.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

American Water Works Company, Inc.

(Registrant)
August 12, 2008 fs/ Donald 1. Correll
(Date) Donald E. Correil

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Aungust 12, 2008 /s/ Ellen C, Wolf

{Date} Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDIX
Exhikbit
Number Exhibit Description
10.1 Note Purchase Agreement, daied May 15, 2008, by and between AWCC and the Purchasers named therein for purchase of $1 16,000,000

6.25% Series G Senior Notes due 2018 and 590,000,000 6.55% Series H Senior Notes due 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 to
American Water Works Company, Inc.’s currett report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-34028, filed May 15, 2008)

®311 Certification of Donald L. Correfl, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
*3].2 Certification of Ellen C. Woif, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
*¥32.1 Certification of Donald L. Correli, President and Chief Execwtive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
*32.2 Cestification of Elien C. Wolf, Senjor Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

* filed herewith.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been served via the
method(s) indicated, on this the _12™ day of __ August _, 2008, upon the following:

x] Hand-Delivery

Timethy C. Phillips, Esq.

[
[ ] U.S. Mail Consumer Advocate and Protection Division
[ ] Facsimile Office of Attorney General
[ ] Overnight 2nd Floor
[x] Email 425 5th Avenue North
Nashville, TN 37243-0491
[ ] Hand-Delivery David C. Higney, Esq.
[ ] U.S. Mail Counsel for Chattanooga Manufacturers Association
[ 1 Facsimile Grant, Konvalinka & Harrison, P.C.
[x] Overnight 633 Chestnut Street, 9th Floor
[x] Email Chattanooga, TN 37450
[x] Hand-Delivery Henry M. Walker, Esq.
[ 1 U.S. Mail Counsel for Chattanooga Manufacturers Association
[ ] Facsimile Boult, Commings, Conners & Berry, PLC
[ ] Overnight Suite 700
[x] Email 1600 Division Street
Nashville, TN 37203
[ ] Hand-Delivery Michael A. McMahan, Esq.
[ ] U.S. Mail Special Counsel
[ ] Facsimile City of Chattanooga (Hamilton County)
[x] Overnight Office of the City Attorney
[x] Email Suite 400
801 Broad Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402
[ ] Hand-Delivery Frederick L. Hitchcock, Esq.
i ] U.S. Mail Harold L. North, Jr., Esq.
[ ] Facsimile Counsel for City of Chattanooga
fx] Overnight Chambliss, Bahner & Stophel, P.C.
[x] Email 1000 Tallan Building

Two Union Square
Chattanooga, TN 37402






